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MISSION STATEMENT 

Regain for Gammon Pakistan Limited its position in the 

Construction Industry of Pakistan /abroad through as 

aggressive but prudent construction strategy 

 

 

 

 

VISION STATEMENT 

To be a Construction Company of international standard of 

repute which executes works confirming to the latest Engineering 

Practices and innovations. Employ most modern 

instrumentation/mechanization to provide technical services with 

the highest degree of Quality Control and Customer 

Satisfaction. The Management also promises complete Financial 

Transparency to all its shareholders and customers so that it is able to 

turn around and bring Gammon Pakistan Limited back to its 

original glory. 
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GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 78th Annual General Meeting of Gammon Pakistan Limited (the 

Company) will be held at Gammon House, 400/2, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi on Thursday 

November 27, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. to transact the following business. 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 

1. To confirm minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on January 17, 2025. 

 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for 

the year ended, June 30, 2025 together with the Director’s and Auditor’s reports thereon. 

 

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year to be ending on June 30, 2026 and to fix 

their remunerations. 

 

To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair. 

 

 

 

         BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

 

          Ghulam Murtaza Khurshid 
         For COMPANY SECRETARY 
October 30, 2025  

 

 

NOTES: 

 

BOOK CLOSURE: 

 

The share transfer books of the Company will be closed from November 21, 2025 to November 27, 

2025, both days inclusive. Transfers received at Company’s Business Shares Registrar office, Vision 

Consulting Limited, 5-C, LDA flats, Lawrence Road, Lahore at the close of business on November 

19, 2025 will be treated in time for the purpose of entitlement. 

 

CHANGE IN ADDRESSES AND CONSOLIDATION OF FOLIOS: 

 

Members of the Company are requested to immediately notify the change of address, if any, and ask 

for consolidation of their folio nos. provided any member holds more than one folio numbers. 

 
PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 

 

Any member entitled to attend this meeting shall be entitled to appoint any other member as his/her 

proxy to attend in respect of him/her and the proxy instrument shall be received by the Company not 

later than 48 hours before the meeting. 
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INSTRUCTION FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS: 

CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in 

Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 

(SECP). 

 

 For attending the meeting: 

 

i. In case of individuals, the account holder and/ or the person whose securities are in 

group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall 

authenticate his/her identity by showing his valid, original Computerized National 

Identity Card (CNIC) or Original Passport at the time of attending the Meeting. 

 

ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s Resolution/Power of Attorney with 

certified specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been 

provided earlier) at the time of the meeting. 

 

For appointing proxies: 

 

i. In case of individuals the account holder and/or person whose securities are in group 

account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations shall submit 

the proxy form as per the above requirements. 

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC 

numbers shall be mentioned on the Form. 

iii. Attested copies of the valid, CNIC or the Passport of the beneficial owners and the 

proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. 

iv. The proxy shall produce his valid, original CNIC or original Passport at the time of 

the meeting. 

v. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s Resolution/ Power of Attorney 

with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along 

with proxy form to the Company.  

 

Any shareholder who is not feeling well or have symptoms such as cough, flu and/or fever is 

encouraged to attend the AGM via electronic means through video link. Members can download the 

app/software through https://zoom.us/download and login via video link to participate in the AGM 

proceedings. Shareholders are requested to get themselves registered at least ten (10) working days 

before the AGM by email at gammon1@dsl.net.pk by providing the following details: 

 

 

Video-link for the meeting will be sent to members at their provided email addresses enabling them 

to attend the meeting on the given date and time. Login facility will be opened thirty (30) minutes 

before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the meeting after the identification process.  

 

Name of Shareholder CNIC Number Folio    

Number 

    Cell Number Email address 
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


400/2  78 

 11  2025  27 



 2025  17 1

 2025  30   2

  2026  30 3








2025  30 




 2025  27  2025  21 

5  2025  19  5-C 








 



 /  / 
 48 
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

2000  26  1 


 

 i

 (CNIC) 
 

 /  ii



 

 i



 ii

   iii

   iv

 /  v


 /  

 /   A G M 

 AGM  http://zoom.us/download

 10  AGM 
 gammon1@dsl.net.pk 

    


 30 


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CHAIRMAN REVIEW 
 
It gives me great pleasure to present the review of the financial year ended June 30, 2025, 
highlighting the overall performance of Gammon Pakistan Limited (“GPL”) and the active role 
of its Board of Directors (“the Board”) in providing strategic leadership, sound oversight, and 
guidance to the management in fulfilling its responsibilities efficiently and in the best interest 
of the Company and its stakeholders. 
 
REVIEW OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE 
 
The Board of Directors continued to play an active and effective role in guiding the overall 
management and operations of the Company during the financial year 2024–25. The Board 
remained fully committed to fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities in line with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019, and all other applicable laws and regulations. 
 
The Board provided clear strategic direction to the management, formulated key business 
policies, and closely monitored the Company’s performance throughout the year. During the 
year under review, four meetings of the Board, four meetings of the Audit Committee, and 
no meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held. The Board also 
ensured that its sub-committees functioned effectively and in accordance with their 
respective terms of reference. 
 
Strong corporate governance practices continue to form the foundation of the Company’s 
operations. The Board has embedded principles of transparency, accountability, and integrity 
into the Company’s culture to uphold the highest standards of business conduct. The 
Company’s risk management framework, internal control systems, and internal audit function 
are in practice, to support efficient and compliant operations. 
 
In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board has carried out its annual 
self-evaluation for the year 2024–25. I am pleased to report that the overall performance of 
the Board and its committees, as assessed against the approved evaluation criteria, remained 
satisfactory. The Board remains committed to continual improvement, effective governance, 
and sustainable value creation for all stakeholders. 
    
REVIEW OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 
 
In view of the prevailing economic uncertainties, Gammon Pakistan Limited (GPL) continues 
to closely monitor market developments and adjust its strategies accordingly. Although the 
Company has faced a challenging business environment and operating losses during the year, 
it remains resilient and well-positioned to sustain operations by maintaining efficiency, 
improving service standards, and gradually expanding its business footprint. 
 
The period under review was marked by a continued slowdown in the construction sector, 
political uncertainty, and limited fiscal space, which adversely affected public and private 
development activity across the country. Expectations were high for the announcement of 
new Public Sector Development Programme projects under the Government; however, 
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economic and political instability has delayed major project approvals, resulting in a 
challenging and less favourable business environment. 
 
Despite these difficulties, the Board and management remain optimistic about the Company’s 
future prospects. GPL is actively pursuing opportunities to secure new infrastructure and 
construction projects at competitive rates, which are expected to improve its financial 
performance in the coming periods. The shortage of working capital continues to be a key 
challenge, and management is making focused efforts to arrange suitable financial support 
and facilities to strengthen the Company’s capacity to undertake larger projects in the near 
future. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my sincere appreciation to our shareholders, 
suppliers, and contractors for their continued trust and confidence in the Company’s Board 
and management. I also wish to record my deepest gratitude to the Board of Directors for 
their valuable guidance, and to the management team and employees for their dedication, 
hard work, and commitment, which remain the foundation of the Company’s ongoing 
resilience and future growth. 
     
       
        
Lt Gen Ali Kuli Khan Khattak (Retd) 
Chairman 
 
Date: October 28, 2025 
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زہ ائ  ن  کا  ج  رمی  ی ئ   چ 

ں مالی سال   کہ می  ے  ی ہ 
 
وش
 
ھے خ ون   30مج  گت من    2025خ  ں  س می  وں، ج  ا ہ  کر رہ  ی ش  زہ پ 

ائ  کا ج  ے والے سال 
 
ون م ہ 

ت 
 
کو خ

اگ کو اج  کردار  عال 
 
رز )"ب ورڈ"( کے ف

کٹ  رپ  کارکردگی اور ب ورڈ آف ڈائ  موعی  کی مج  ل"(  ی اپ  پ  ی  ڈ )"ج  ت  ان لمی  اکست  ے،  پ  ا ہ  گت  ا  کت  ر 

کی۔  م  راہ 
 
ی اور جکمتِ عملی ف

 
گراپ
ی، پ 
 
ت ماپ ر رہ 

 
کو مؤئ امی ہ 

ظ  ت 
 
ں ان اد می  ر مف 

ہٹ  ولڈرز کے ب  ت ک ہ 
 
ی اور اس کے اسی

 
ن کمی  ے 

 
ہوں ن

ن   خ 

زہ  ائ  کا ج  کارکردگی  کی   ب ورڈ 

عال   25-2024مالی سال  
 
ر اور ف

 
ں مؤئ ی می 

 
ت ماپ کی رہ  مور 

ُ
امی اور عملی ا ظ  ت 

 
ی کے ان

 
ن کمی  ے 

 
رز ن کٹ  رپ  کے دوران ب ورڈ آف ڈائ 

کٹ  ز اپ  ٹ 
 
کمپ ن ے 

 
ا۔ ب ورڈ ن کت  ز  2017کردار ادا  ٹ  گولی ش  س( رپ 

 
ی
گورپ  ٹ  کارب ورن  ز )کوڈ آف  ٹ 

 
کمپ ن ڈ  مام   2019، لست  گر ت  اور دپ 

ا۔ ت ھاپ 
ی ن  وپ 
 
خ
 
کو ب ی ذمہ دارب وں 

 
ن وں کے مظاب ق ان 

 
اض ف 
واب ط کے ب 

 
ن و ض ی 

واپ 
 
ہ ق علق 

 مت 

کارکردگی   کی  ی 
 
ن کمی  ھر  وری دی، اور سال ب 

 
ظ
کی مت  الی سی وں  کاروپ اری پ  م 

کی، اہ  م  راہ 
 
ح جکمت عملی ف

 
کو واض امی ہ 

ظ  ت 
 
ے ان
 
ب ورڈ ن

ی  
 
ن کمی  ن 

 
ری ش ٹ 
 
ڈ رت مون ت  ی ومن ری سورس ان  لاس اور ہ  ار اج  ی کے ج 

 
ن کمی  لاس، آڈٹ  ار اج  ں ب ورڈ کے ج  زہ سال می 

ائ  کی۔ زئ رِ ج  ی 
 
گراپ
کی پ 

داز   ر اپ 
 
کار کے مظاب ق مؤئ رہ  ے دائ  ن  ن  اں ا ت 

 
ی کمی  کی ذپ لی  کہ اس  ا  اپ  ت  ی ن 

 
ن ی 
 
ھی ب ق ے ی ہ ب 

 
وا۔ ب ورڈ ن ں ہ  ہی 

د ب  عف 
لاس مت  ی اج 

 
کوپ کا 

ں۔  ی  ی رہ 
 
کرپ کام  ں   می 

ی  
 
ن کمی  کو  داری  ی اور ات ماپ  واپ دہ  پ ت، خ 

 
اف ف  ے ش 

 
ں۔ ب ورڈ ن ی  اد ہ  ت 

 
ی کی پ  ور اس 

 
س کے اضول پ دسی

 
ی
گورپ  ٹ  کارب ورن  ی وط 

 
ں مض ی می 

 
ن کمی 

م ورک،  ری 
 
پ ٹ ف م ج 

 
ن کا رسک می  ی 

 
ن کمی  ں۔  ی  رار رہ 

 
ات ئ رف ت 

 
لاف
کاروپ اری اج  کی  ار   معت 

ٰ
اکہ اعلی ے، پ  ا رکھا ہ  ت  کا حصہ ن  ت 

 
اف ف 
ی  کی ب 

 
دروپ اپ 

ں۔  ی  اری ہ  عال طور ئ ر ج 
 
ن ف
 
کش
ت 
 
ل آڈٹ ف

رپ  ٹ 
 
م اور ان

رول سست  ٹ 
 
 کن

ے سال  
 
س کے مظاب ق ب ورڈ ن

 
ی
گورپ  ٹ  کارب ورن  ا، اور ی ہ   25-2024کوڈ آف  کت  کمل 

م
زہ  ائ  کا ج  کارکردگی  ہ  ی سالای 

 
ن ے ان  لن  کے 

ش  
 
خ
 
سلی ب

 
ار کے مظاب ق ی ررہ معت 

 
کارکردگی مق موعی  کی مج  ی وں 

 
ی کمی  کی  کہ ب ورڈ اور اس  ے  ا ہ  پ  ا ا ج  کت  ھ رب ورٹ 

 
ان کے ساب ت  اطمی 

ے۔ ے ئ رعزم ہ  لن  ے کے 
 
کرن ت دا  در ن 

دار ق  ان ت  ے پ  لن  ولڈرز کے  ت ک ہ 
 
ری اور اسی

ہٹ  س، ب 
 
ی
گورپ  ر 

 
ھی مؤئ ں ب  ل می  ت 

 
ق
ی۔ ب ورڈ مست   رہ 
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زہ  ائ  کا ج  کارکردگی   کاروب اری 

کھے   ر ر
 
ظ
 
ل( مسلسل مارکپ ٹ کے جالات ئ ر ب ی اپ  پ  ی  ڈ )ج  ت  ان لمی  اکست  گت من پ  ر، 

 
ظ
 
ی ش ب حال کے پ 

 
ی ضورب

 
ن ی 
 
ر ب ق ٹ 

 
ی غ

 
معاش

کل  
کو سال کے دوران مش  ی 

 
ن کمی  ہ  ے۔ اگرچ  ا ہ  ا رہ  کو جالات کے مظاب ق ڈھالت  کاروپ اری جکمت عملی وں  ی 

 
ن ے اور ان  ے ہ 

 
ون ہ 

 
 
ڈرڈز, اخ ت 

 
ر سروس اسی

ہٹ  ے، اور ب  حکم ہ 
 
ھی مسن ی اب ب 

 
ن کمی  م  اہ  ا، پ  ا رہ  کا سامت  ات  صاپ  ق 

 
گ ب ت 

 
ی ں  کاروپ اری ماخول اور آئ رپ  ات می  راج 

ے۔  ے ہ 
 
ون کھے ہ  اری ر کو ج  ی سرگرمی وں 

 
ن ب عے ان  ے کے ذر

 
ج ئ ڑھان

 
درب ت  رہ ن 

کاروپ اری دائ  عاری اور 
ت ش  ان   کف 

کمی   ں  ش می 
 
ای ح 
 
گن ی 

 
اپ حال اور مالت 

 
ی ضورب

 
ن ی 
 
ر ب ق ٹ 

 
اشی غ ا، ست  کار رہ  کا ش  لسل سست روی 

عی ہ مس
ی ش 
 
راپ عمٹ 

مالی سال کے دوران ب 

ٹ ئ روگرام
ر ڈب ولت مپ 

کٹ  ت لک ست  ب سے ن  ان  کی ج  ا۔ جکومت  کت  ر 
 
ائ کو مت  ی سرگرمی وں 

 
اپ ت 
 
رف
 
ی ئ ج 

 
ے سرکاری اور ب

 
 (PSDP) ن

کا  ر  ٹ 
 
اخ ے پ  صون 

ی مت 
 
کن حکام کے پ اغث 

 
اشی عدم اسن ی اور ست 

 
ھی، مگر معاش

 
ع ب
 
وف
 
کی ب صوب وں کے اعلان 

حت ئ ڑے مت 
 
کے ب

ے ئ ر ئ ڑا۔  عن 
ی ش 
 
راپ عمٹ 

ر ب 
 
کا ئ راہ راست ائ س  ے، ج 

 
ون کار ہ   ش 

ے   ن 
ن  وں ئ ر 

 
رخ
 
ی ئ
 
ن
 
ل مساب ق  

ی اپ پ  ی  ں۔ ج  ی  د ہ  رامت 
ُ
ں ئ  ت ل کے پ ارے می 

 
ق
ی کے مست 

 
ن کمی  امی ہ 

ظ  ت 
 
ود، ب ورڈ اور ان اوخ  ز کے پ  ج 

 
لن ت 
خ 

د   کی امت  ے 
 
ون ر ہ  ہٹ  کارکردگی ب  ں مالی  دہ ادوار می  ن ت  س سے آ ے، ج  ے سرگرم ہ  لن  صوب وں کے حصول کے 

ر مت  رکج 
راسٹ 
 
ق
 
ی اور اب

 
راپ عمٹ 

ب 

ے   لن  ل اور سہولت ات کے حصول کے 
امی ہ ممکی ہ مالی وساپ 

ظ  ت 
 
ے، اور ان ج ہ 

 
لن  
ت ور ئ ڑا خ 

 
کمی پ دسی کی  ل 

ی ت  ی  کی  گ  ے۔ ورکت  ہ 

ت ھال سکے۔ 
 
ھی سی ے ب  صون 

ی ئ ڑے مت 
 
ن کمی  اکہ  ے پ  ے ہ 

 
ون کھے ہ  اری ر ں ج  ی 

 
س
 
 کوس

کر ش 
 
ہارِ ت

 
 اظ

ی کے ب ورڈ اور  
 
ن کمی  ے 

 
ہوں ن

ن  وں خ  ا ہ  کرپ  کری ہ ادا 
کا س  رز  کٹ  رپ  ٹ 

 
کن رز اور  لائ  ولڈرز، ست  ر ہ  ن ٹ 

 
مارے س ں ہ  ب سے، می  ان  کی ج  ب ورڈ 

ھی دلی   گی ئ ر ب 
پ ت اور وای ست  کی مح امی ہ و عملے 

ظ  ت 
 
ی اور ان

 
ت ماپ ی رہ 

 
ت من
 
کی ف رز  کٹ  رپ  ں ڈائ  ا۔ می  کت  ہار 

 
کا اظ امی ہ ئ ر مسلسل اعت ماد 

ظ  ت 
 
ان

ں۔ ی  اد ہ  ت 
 
ی کی پ  ی 

 
رق
 
دہ ئ ن ت  حالی اور آ کی ب  ی 

 
ن کمی  ں  ی 

 
س
 
کوس کی  ن  وں، ج   ممی ون ہ 

 

رل علی   ٹ  پ ٹ خ 
 
ی ی 
 
ی
 
ت ق  ل

ائ رڈ(ق  ت  ک )رن 
ت 
 
ان خ لی ج   

ن رمی  ن ٹ   خ 

خ: 
 
ارب وئ ر،   28پ 

2025اکی   
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their report, together with Annual 
Audited Financial Statements for the period ended June 30, 2025. 
 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
 
The principal activity of the Company is all types of Construction specially Bridges and 
Buildings. The highlights of the Company's financial results as compared to the preceding year 
are as follows: 
  

Particulars 
 

2025 
(Rupees) 

2024 
(Rupees) 

Contract Income 
 

- - 

Contract Expenditure 
 

(706,759) (920,927) 

Net contract (Loss) 
 

(706,759) (920,927) 

Profit before taxation 
 

(43,375,648) 2,453,177 

Taxation 
 

(20,429,322) 40,180,043 

Profit 
 

(63,804,970) 42,633,220 

  
During the financial year 2024–25, the overall business environment remained difficult for 
the construction sector. The Company could not record any contract revenue during the 
period, as no new project was obtained and no contractual work was in progress. The 
continued slowdown in the national construction industry, tight liquidity conditions, and 
general market uncertainty made it difficult to secure new projects. Persistent political and 
economic instability also had a negative impact on business confidence and project financing 
across the country. 
 
During the year, the Company successfully sold its Hyderabad plots for a total consideration 
of PKR 155 million. The sale proceeds were primarily utilized for the settlement of certain 
outstanding liabilities, while a major portion was extended as an interest-bearing loan to 
Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited for the construction of its warehouse shed. Part 
of the funds was also used for the renovation and value addition of the Gammon House 
building, aimed at improving its commercial utility and long-term rental potential. 
 
The Auditors’ Report highlighted certain areas requiring management attention, and the 
Company remains focused on addressing these matters in a timely and appropriate manner. 
Issues relating to contract assets are pending final settlement of bills with clients and will be 
adjusted once reconciliation is completed. Some closed projects extended beyond their 
planned timelines, resulting in additional losses, which will be accounted for progressively as 

10



P a g e  2 | 8 

 

irrecoverable receivables, subject to reliable confirmation and approval of the Board, and 
subsequently by the shareholders where required. 
 
The management continues to make active efforts to obtain new projects. The main challenge 
remains the arrangement of bank guarantee and working capital facilities, which are essential 
for participation in large-scale public sector projects. Despite these limitations, the Company 
has been regularly participating in bidding for viable opportunities and is also exploring joint 
venture arrangements with financially strong partners to enhance its chances of securing 
future contracts. The Board remains hopeful that with the stabilization of the economy and 
gradual revival of the construction industry, the Company will be able to achieve business 
recovery and growth in the near future. 
 
During the period, encouraging progress is seen concerning the Maritime Technologies 
Complex (MTC) Project at Fateh Jang, near Islamabad. As part of the machinery and 
equipment previously held at the MTC site is being recovered and shifted to the Company’s 
CSD facility at Rawat, while an amount of PKR 6.9 million relating to pending work bill claims 
has been released by MTC during the first quarter of FY 2025–26. The management continues 
to pursue resolution of the remaining claims and final settlement through regular 
communication and coordination with the client. 
 
The Old Bannu Road (OBR) Structure and Bridges Project remain under process on similar 
lines, with management maintaining active engagement with the concerned authorities for 
reconciliation and recovery of the outstanding receivables. The Company is utilizing all 
available resources to conclude both projects satisfactorily and secure the amounts due. 
 
DIVIDEND 
 
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the year due to a prevalent state of loss in 
contractual income. 
 
GENERAL ECONOMIC REVIEW 
 
During the financial year ended June 30, 2025, Pakistan’s economy continued to face serious 
challenges, although some signs of stability were seen toward the end of the year. The period 
remained difficult due to high inflation, slow industrial activity, and limited government 
spending. Despite the continuation of strict policies under the IMF program and the impact 
of global price increases, the overall economic condition was somewhat better than the 
previous year. 
 
Inflation stayed high at around 24–25% during FY 2024–25, mainly because of higher prices 
of food, fuel, and electricity. The Pakistani Rupee remained more stable compared to the 
sharp decline seen in the earlier year, helped by a better balance in foreign exchange reserves 
and lower current account deficit. However, the cost of doing business remained very high 
due to energy shortages, high interest rates, and increased raw material costs. 
 
According to the Government of Pakistan and the State Bank of Pakistan, the GDP growth for 
FY 2024–25 is estimated at about 2.4%, showing a small improvement mainly because of 
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better results in the agriculture and services sectors, while industrial and construction sectors 
continued to struggle. Large-scale manufacturing showed only a minor recovery due to low 
demand and reduced export activity. The construction industry, which plays a key role in 
overall economic growth, remained slow because of less public development spending and 
higher project costs, limiting the start of new projects. 
 
The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) reported total tax collections of over PKR 9.4 trillion, 
which were still below the revised targets. The government continued with a tight fiscal 
policy, aiming to control inflation and maintain financial discipline. The industrial sector 
recorded a growth of around 1.5%, and the construction sector grew by about 3.8%, mainly 
through smaller private projects. The services sector, which makes up nearly 58% of the total 
economy, grew by around 2.5% due to moderate performance in trade, transport, and 
communication. 
 
Pakistan’s economy still faces major structural issues such as a large undocumented economy, 
low industrial investment, and high dependency on imports. These long-standing issues 
continue to affect sustainable economic growth. 
 
In this overall situation, Gammon Pakistan Limited continued to face challenges in obtaining 
new contracts during the year under review. The delay and reduction in public development 
works, along with high material and financing costs, kept business activity low in the 
construction sector. Despite these difficulties, the Company stayed focused on maintaining 
its operational capability, managing available resources carefully, and giving more attention 
to its precast operations and related construction services. These efforts are aimed at keeping 
the Company active, improving efficiency, and protecting shareholder value in a very difficult 
business environment. 
 
FUTURE PROSPECTS 
 
The Company continued to face challenges in obtaining new projects due to slow activity in 
the construction sector and limited government development spending. Unfortunately, no 
new contracts were secured during the period; however, the Company remained operational 
with a focus on managing its ongoing administrative and maintenance activities efficiently. 
The management also worked on strengthening relationships with clients and exploring 
potential opportunities in both public and private sectors. 
 
To maintain business continuity, the Company has placed greater emphasis on precast 
construction technology through its related company, Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) 
Limited. The use of precast structures provides a faster, more cost-effective, and durable 
construction solution, which aligns with future market needs. The Company aims to expand 
this line of business and promote custom-built precast housing and related infrastructure 
solutions as a key growth area. 
 
Looking ahead, the Company expects gradual improvement in the construction sector as 
economic stability improves and development spending resumes. Gammon Pakistan Limited 
remains committed to maintaining financial discipline, improving operational efficiency, and 
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positioning itself to take advantage of upcoming opportunities in infrastructure, housing, and 
precast construction works. 
 
CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK 
 
The Directors confirm compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulation, 2019 (the CCG Regulations) for the following matters: 
 

1. The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly 
its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 
 

2. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these 
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgments. 
 

3. The Company has maintained proper books of accounts. 
 

4. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been 
followed in preparation of these financial statements. 
 

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented 
and monitored. The process of monitoring internal controls will continue as on-going 
process with objective to strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system. 
 

6. There are no doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 
 

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of CCG Regulations. 
 

8. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties levy and charges which are 
outstanding as at June 30, 2025, except for those disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
9. No trade in the shares of the Company was carried-out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, 

Company Secretary, their spouses and minor children during the year ended June 30, 
2025. 

 
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 
 
The Composition of the Board is in line with the requirements of the CCG Regulations. The 
Company encourages representation of independent and non-executive directors, as well as 
gender diversity on its Board. 
 
The current composition of the Board is as follows: 
 
Total number of directors 07 
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Male           06 
Female       01 

 
Independent Director 02 
 
Other Non-Executive Directors 04 
 
Executive Directors 01 
 
Apart from their mandatory job requirements, the performance of the Board of our Company 
is evaluated annually along the following parameters, both at individual and collective level. 
 

i. Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of gender, talents, skills and diversified 
perspectives. 

ii. Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness and active participation of members. 
iii. Follow-up and review of annual targets set by the management. 
iv. Ability to provide guidance and direction to the Company.  
v. Ability to identify aspects of the organization's performance requiring action.  
vi. Review of succession planning of management. 
vii. Ability to assess and understand the risk exposures of the Company.  
viii. Contribution and interest with regard to improving health safety and 

environment, employment and other policies and practices in the Company.  
ix. Safeguarding the Company against unnecessary litigation and reputational 

risk. 
 
The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of above-mentioned parameters 
for the year was satisfactory. The Board members effectively brought the diversity to the 
Board and constitute a mix of independent and non-executive directors. The Board is also 
effective in formulating the corporate goals for the company. 
 
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Board Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, 
primarily in reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to share-holders, 
systems of internal control and risk management and the audit process. It has autonomy to 
call for information from the management and to discuss directly with the external auditors 
or advisors as considered appropriate. The Chief Financial Officer attends the Board Audit 
Committee meetings by invitation to present the accounts. After each meeting, the Chairman 
of the Committee reports to the Board. The Committee met 4 time.   
 
The names of committee members are as follows: 
      
Mr. Kamal Abdullah Malik   Independent Director          Chairman  
Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak      Non-Executive Director     Member 
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak       Non-Executive Director     Member 
Mr. Salman Khan ACA                Head of internal Audit      Secretary  
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements, 
besides the internal audit plan, material audit findings and recommendations of the internal 
audit department.  
 
In addition to above meetings, Audit Committee met with external auditors without Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit (HIA). Audit Committee also met the Head 
of Internal Audit and other members of the internal audit function without the CFO and the 
external auditors being present. 
 
HR AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and 
recommending all elements of the Company’s human resource policies, including matters 
relating to compensation, employee development, and the remuneration structure of senior 
management. The Committee also oversees succession planning and ensures that the 
Company’s remuneration framework remains fair, transparent, and aligned with its business 
objectives and regulatory requirements. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company serves as a member of the Committee and attends 
its meetings whenever held during the year. During the financial year 2024–25, the 
Committee did not hold any meeting, as there was no significant business activity or 
organizational change requiring revision in compensation or policy matters. However, the 
Committee continues to monitor the Company’s human resource framework and will 
convene as necessary to review any future adjustments in line with business needs and 
applicable regulations. 
 
The names of committee members are as follows: 
 
Brig Humayun Malik (Retd)  Independent Director  Chairman 
Mrs. Ayesha Alamzeb Durrani Non-Executive Director Member 
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Non-Executive Director Member 
 
MEETINGS OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES IN 2024-2025 
 
During the year 2024-2025 four Board (BOD) meetings, four Board Audit Committee (BAC) 
meetings and No HR & Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) meeting were held. The number 
of meetings attended by each director during the year is given here under: 
 

Sr. No. Directors 

Committee 
Members 

Attendance 

Board Audit 
Committee 

HR 
& 
RC 

Board 
Meetings 

Board Audit 
Committee 

HR 
& 
RC 

1. Lt Gen Ali Kuli Khan Khattak (Retd) - - 4/4 - - 

2. Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak   - - 4/4 - - 

3. Mrs. Ayesha Alamzeb Durrani - ✓ 4/4 - 0 

4. Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak ✓ - 4/4 4 - 
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5. Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak ✓ ✓ 2/4 1 0 

6. Mr. Kamal Abdullah Malik ✓ - 4/4 4 - 

7. Brig Humayun Malik (Retd) - ✓ 3/4 - 0 

 
Leave of absence was granted to directors who could not attend the Board meetings due to 
their busy schedule and other appointments. 
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
Pursuant to the CCG Regulations, the Board recognized that it continually needs to monitor 
and improve its performance. This is achieved through the annual performance evaluation 
and ongoing Board development activities. During the year, the Board has appraised its 
performance of Board as a whole as well as individual directors and its committees. The 
overall conclusion of this year’s review based on availability feedback has been found 
satisfactory.    
 
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 
 
For information on remuneration of Directors and CEO in the year 2024-25, please refer notes 
to the financial statements.  
 
KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA (SIX YEARS SUMMARY) 
 
Key operating and financial data of six years is annexed to the report. 
 
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
 
The statement of the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2025 and additional information 
about it, is annexed to the report. 
 
CONTRIBUTION OF OUR COMPANY TOWARDS GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL SECTOR 
 
We wish to give hereunder our Company's revenue contribution towards the Government, 
Semi Government sectors, Banks and Social sector during the year ended 30 June, 2025. 
 
GOVERNMENT SECTOR       (In Million PKR) 
 
Income Tax paid (Note 15 to the Financial Statements)           8.304 
Power & Fuel (Note 26 to the Financial Statements)                1.368 
 
HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment 
to ensure the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where 
we operate. 
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have 
taken place between the end of the financial year and the date of the Report. 
 
COMMENTS ON “EMPHASIS OF MATTER” PARAGRAPH IN THE AUDITOR’S REPORT  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors are of the opinion that the case falls within the ambit of 
SBP “Incentive Scheme” for the recovery of loan defaults vide BPRD Circular no. 19 and, as 
such, liable to pay only Rs.35.122 million in full and final settlement of its outstanding liability 
and provision for the same has already made in financial statements. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS 
 
The Company's Auditors M/S Rizwan & Co Chartered Accountants, 114-A, Tipu Block, New 
Garden Town, Lahore retired and offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of 
Directors of the Company as recommended by the Board Audit Committee hereby 
recommends that the retiring auditors be re-appointed. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT   
 
We appreciate the hard work and dedication of the Company’s Management, engineers and 
employees during the period under review. 
 
We would also like to express our gratitude to our Bankers, Clients and Suppliers for their co-
operation, support and trust reposed in the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak 
Chief Executive Officer        Director 
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


 2025  30 
 





2024


2025


- 

 


(920,927) (706,759) 
 

(920,927) (706,759) 
2,453,177 (43,375,648)  / 

40,180,043 (20,429,322) 

42,633,220 (63,804,970)  / 
 2024-25 






 155 










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 



 



 MTC  

MTC



 CSD  MTC 

 6.9  2025-26 


 OBR 








 2025  30 




 2524  2024–25 




 2.4  2024–25 




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 9.4  FBR 
 1.5 

 3.8 
 2.5  58 

























  2019   


 1


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 2

 3

 4

 5


 6

  2019  7

 2025  30 8


 2025  30 9







(07) 
(06) 

(01) 
(02) 

(04) 
(01) 




 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6
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 7

 8

 9








 4  2024-25 



   1

   2

   3

    4






 




 2024–25 



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
   1

   2

   3

 2024-25 

 2024-25 



 






 


  

- - 4/4 - -  1

- - 4/4 - -  2

0 - 4/4  -  3

- 4 4/4 -   4

0 1 2/4     5

- 4 4/4 -   6

0 - 3/4  -  7







 2024-25 





 2025  30
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

   2025  30




 

         8.304   15 
 1.368  26 








 '' 



 ''  SBP 

 35.122  19  BPRD 




 114-A 







 

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Pattern of shareholding 
 

 

[Pursuant to Section 227(2)(f) of the Companies Act, 2017 

read with Regulation 30 of the Companies Regulations, 2024] 

 

 

PART-I 
 

(Please complete in typescript or in bold block capitals.) 
 

 

1.1 Name of the Company GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED 
 

PART-II 
 

2.1.  Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders 

as at  

3 0  0 6  2 0 2 5 

 

2.2.    No of 

shareholders 

 Shareholdings  Total shares held 

     

1410  shareholding from 1 to 100 shares  56034 
     

492  shareholding from 101 to 500 shares  127413 
     

150  shareholding from 501 to 1000 shares  119252 
     

162  shareholding from 1001 to 5000  401176 
     

38  shareholding from 5001 to 10000  293979 
     

15  shareholding from 10001 to 15000  187141 
     

11  shareholding from 15001 to 20000  192736 
     

7  shareholding from 20001 to 25000  150333 
     

3  shareholding from 25001 to 30000  78509 
     

3  shareholding from 30001 to 35000  100146 
     

3  shareholding from 35001 to 40000  114533 
     

1  shareholding from 40001 to 45000  40719 
     

2  shareholding from 45001 to 50000  97000 
     

1  shareholding from 50001 to 55000  50500 
     

2  shareholding from 55001 to 60000  112878 
     

2  shareholding from 60001 to 65000  122932 
     

1  shareholding from 75001 to 80000  79535 
     

2  shareholding from 80001 to 85000  165377 
     

2  shareholding from 85001 to 90000  177009 
     

FORM-20 
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1  shareholding from 95001 to 100000  98500 
     

1  shareholding from 115001 to 120000  120000 
     

1  shareholding from 135001 to 140000  138226 
     

1  shareholding from 320001 to 325000  323203 
     

1  shareholding from 805001 to 810000  806973 
     

1  Shareholding from1185001to1190000  1185500 
     

1  shareholding from2560001to2565000  2561071 
     

1  shareholdingfrom20365001to20370000  20365556 

  (Add appropriate slabs of shareholdings)   
  

Total 

 

28266231 

  

2.3 Categories of shareholders  share held  Percentage 
 

 2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and 

their spouse and minor children.  

  86438  0.306 

       

 2.3.2 Associated Companies, undertakings 

and related parties. 

 20369056  72.06 

       

 2.3.3 NIT and ICP   11401  0.0403 
       

 2.3.4 Banks Development Financial 

Institutions, Non-Banking Financial 

Institutions. 

 250  0.00088 

       

 2.3.5 Insurance Companies  109  0.00038 
       

 2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds  301  0.00106 
       

 2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10%   23737100  83.97 
       

 2.3.8 General Public      

           a.  Local  7570437  26.78 
       

           b.  Foreign  207187  0.071 
       

 2.3.9 Others (Joint Stock Companies)  7023  0.0248 

 

Note: In case there are more than one class of shares carrying voting rights, the information 

regarding each such class shall be given separately. 
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Statement of Compliance for Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
 

Name of Company: Gammon Pakistan Limited 
Year ended:  June 30, 2025 

 
The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 
 

1. The total number of Directors are seven (7), as following: 
 

a. Male: 6 
b. Female: 1 

 
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:  

 

Category Names 

Executive Directors Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak 

Non-Executive Directors 

Lt Gen Ali Kuli Khan Khattak (Retd) 
Mrs. Ayesha Alamzeb Durrani 
Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak 
Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak 

Independent Directors 
Mr. Kamal Abdullah Malik 
Brig Humayun Malik (Retd) 

 
3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director with more than seven 

listed companies, including this company; 
 

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures; 

 
5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and 

significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of 
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is 
maintained by the company; 

 
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters 

have been taken by the Board / Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of 
the Act and the Regulations; 

 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 

director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the 
requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and 
circulating minutes of the Board meeting; 

 
8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors 

in accordance with the Act and the Regulations; 
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9. The Board will arrange Directors’ Training program for the following:  

 
  Number of Directors (03) 

 
Following Directors meet the exemption criteria of minimum of 14 years of education and 15 
years of experience on the Boards of listed companies, hence are exempt from Directors’ 
training program:   

 

Names of Directors 

Lt Gen Ali Kuli Khan Khattak (Retd) 

 
10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and 

Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations; 

 
11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements 

before approval of the Board; 
 

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 
 

a) Board Audit Committee 
 

Names Designation held 

Mr. Kamal Abdullah Malik Chairman 

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak Member 

Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Member 

 
b) HR and Remuneration Committee  

 

Names Designation held 

Brig Humayun Malik (Retd) Chairman 

Mrs. Ayesha Alamzeb Durrani Member 

Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak Member 

 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 

advised to the committee for compliance; 
 
 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the committee were as per 
following: 

 
a) Audit Committee 
 
four meetings were held during the financial year ended June 30, 2025. 
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b) HR Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
No meeting of HR and Remuneration Committee was held during the financial year ended 
June 30, 2025. 

 
15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function, which is considered suitably 

qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the company. 
 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they 
and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close 
relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the 
company; 

 
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 

provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other 
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard; 

 
18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the 

Regulations have been complied with; 
 

19. Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 
32, 33 and 36 are below:  

 

Sr. 
No. 

Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation 
Number 

1 Nomination Committee 
The Board may constitute a 
separate committee, designated as 
the nomination committee, of such 
number and class of directors, as it 
may deem appropriate in its 
circumstances. 
 

Currently, the Board has not constituted 
a separate nomination committee and 
the functions are being performed by 
the human resource and remuneration 
committee. The Board shall consider to 
constitute separate nomination 
committee after next election of 
directors.   

29 

2 Risk Management Committee 
The Board may constitute the risk 
management committee, of such 
number and class of directors, as it 
may deem appropriate in its 
circumstances, to carry out a review 

The Board of Directors of the Company, 
had not constituted the Risk 
Management Committee after having 
considered the internal control system 
of the Company suitably effective, 
material controls are being managed 

30 
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Sr. 
No. 

Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation 
Number 

of effectiveness of risk 
management procedures and 
present a report to the Board. 

satisfactorily, alongside the integrity of 
financial information is being ensured by 
the management to the satisfaction of 
the Board. 

3 Disclosure of significant policies on 
website  
The Company may post key 
elements of its significant policies, 
brief synopsis of terms of reference 
of the Board’s committees on its 
website and key elements of the 
directors’ remuneration policy. 
 

Although these are well circulated 
among the relevant employees and 
directors, the Board shall consider 
posting such policies and synopsis on its 
website in near future.   

35 

4 Responsibilities of the Board and 
its members  
The Board is responsible for 
adoption of corporate governance 
practices by the company.   

Non-mandatory provisions of the 
Regulations are partially   complied. The 
company is deliberating on full 
compliance with all the provisions of the 
Regulations.      

10(1) 

5 Directors’ Training 
Companies are encouraged to 
arrange training for the remaining 
director under the Directors’ 
Training Program from year July 
2020. 

The Company has planned to arrange 
Directors’ Training Program certification 
for Remaining directors, over the next 
few years. 

19(3) 

6 Training for HODs 
Companies are encouraged to 
arrange training for at least one 
head of department every year 
under the Directors’ Training 
Program from July 2022. 

The company has planned to arrange 
Directors’ Training Program certification 
for heads of department over next few 
years. 

19(3) 

7 Representation of Minority 
shareholders 
The minority members as a class 
shall be facilitated by the Board to 
contest election of directors by 
proxy solicitation. 

No one intended to contest election as 
director representing minority 
shareholders. 

5 

8 Role of board and its members to 
address Sustainability Risks and 
Opportunities  
During the year, the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
issued certain amendments (in 
relation to Regulation 10) of the 
Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations 

The Company has established an 
internal mechanism for handling 
workplace harassment complaints in 
compliance with the Protection against 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace 
Act, 2010, and has incorporated 
measures promoting equal opportunity, 
diversity, and ethical conduct. Oversight 
of environmental, social, and 

10A 
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Sr. 
No. 

Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation 
Number 

2019, through its notification 
“S.R.O. 920(I)/2024. The 
amendments to Regulation 10 (and 
related sub-regulations), adding 
specific sub-clauses (for example an 
anti-harassment clause added as a 
new sub-paragraph) to address 
sustainability risk and 
opportunities. 

governance (ESG) initiatives has also 
been integrated into the Company’s 
governance framework and compliance 
thereof. 

 
20. The two elected independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and 

experience to discharge and execute their duties competently, as per applicable laws and 
regulations. As they fulfill the necessary requirements as per applicable laws and 
regulations, hence, appointment of a third independent director is not warranted. 

 
 
 
 
Lt Gen Ali Kuli Khan Khattak (Retd)     
Chairman          Director  
 
Date: October 28, 2025 
Rawalpindi 
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GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS 2025 2024

NON CURRENT ASSETS NOTE

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets 5 126,881,653      264,259,416      

Investment property 6 365,339,500      357,646,440      

Long term investments 7 189,340,000      189,340,000      

Long term security deposits 8 1,350,600          3,750,600          

Deferred taxation 20 -                     10,866,023        

682,911,753      825,862,479      

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 9 12,354,604        12,333,504        

Contract receivables 10 44,457,835        45,065,957        

Contract asset 11 65,049,779        65,049,779        

Loans and advances 12 84,637,299        19,982,207        

Other receivables 13 2,597,489          909,156             

Tax refunds due from Government 14 94,600,838        90,496,383        

Taxation - net 15 8,304,681          4,104,455          

Cash and bank balances 16 1,946,260          3,101,414          

313,948,785      241,042,855      

TOTAL ASSETS 996,860,538      1,066,905,334   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 17 282,662,310      282,662,310      

Capital reserves

Share premium reserve 15,380,330        15,380,330        

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 18 111,066,181      382,426,284      

126,446,511      397,806,614      

Revenue reserve

Accumulated profit 376,040,628      167,280,714      

TOTAL EQUITY 785,149,449      847,749,638      

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred liability 19 4,642,963          6,402,590          

Deferred taxation 20 9,599,887           - 

14,242,850        6,402,590          

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 21 165,966,468      181,251,334      

Unclaimed dividends 22 1,442,230          1,442,230          

Joint venture partner's advances 23 30,059,542        30,059,542        

197,468,240      212,753,106      

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 996,860,538      1,066,905,334   

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24 -                     -                     

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                             CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                            DIRECTOR

Rupees

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

NOTE

Contract income -                     -                     

Contract expenditure 25 (706,759)            (920,927)            

Net contract (Loss) (706,759)            (920,927)            

Operating expenses

General and administrative expenses 26 (64,688,824)       (33,950,830)       

Other operating expenses 27 (38,599,125)       (745,444)            

(103,287,949)     (34,696,274)       

Other income 28 52,931,683        35,135,384        

Net operating (loss) (51,063,024)       (481,817)            

Bank charges 29 (5,684)                (3,828)                

30 7,693,060          3,441,280          

(Loss)/ Profit before minimum taxes and final taxes (43,375,648)       2,955,635          

Minimum taxes 31 -                     (502,458)            

(Loss)/profit before income tax (43,375,648)       2,453,177          

Income Tax 32 (20,429,322)       40,180,043        

(Loss)/profit after taxation (63,804,970)       42,633,220        

Earning per share:

(Loss)/ Earning per share - basic and diluted 33  (2.26)  1.51 

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                            DIRECTOR

Net fair value gain on investment property

Rupees
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

NOTE

(Loss)/Profit after taxation (63,804,970)       42,633,220        

Other comprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 18 1,499,765          589,256             

Related deferred tax impact 18 (36,588)             12,106               

1,463,177          601,362             

(Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability 19.4 (258,396)            158,987             

Total other comprehensive income for the year 1,204,781          760,349             

Total comprehensive income for the year (62,600,189)       43,393,569        

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                       CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                           DIRECTOR

Rupees
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
 Reserves 

 Revenue 

NOTE

Balance as at July 1, 2023 282,662,310  15,380,330    428,814,751    77,498,678    804,356,069  

Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2024

Net profit for the year -                 -                 -                  42,633,220    42,633,220    

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of deferred tax -                 -                 601,362           -                 601,362         

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability -                 -                 -                  158,987         158,987         

-                 -                 601,362           42,792,207    43,393,569    

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment:

    - on account of incremental depreciation-net of deferred tax 18 -                 -                 (1,441,959)       1,441,959      -                 

    - upon disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment -                 -                 (45,547,870)     45,547,870    -                 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 282,662,310  15,380,330    382,426,284    167,280,714  847,749,638  

Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2025

Net loss for the year -                 -                 -                  (63,804,970)   (63,804,970)   

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of deferred tax -                 -                 1,463,177        -                 1,463,177      

Loss on remeasurement of defined benefit liability -                 -                 -                  (258,396)        (258,396)        

-                 -                 1,463,177        (64,063,366)   (62,600,189)   

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment:

    - on account of incremental depreciation-net of deferred tax 18 -                 -                 (1,884,181)       1,884,181      -                 

    - upon disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment -                 -                 (270,939,099)   270,939,099  -                 

Balance as at June 30, 2025 282,662,310  15,380,330    111,066,181    376,040,628  785,149,448  

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

Rupees

Share capital

Total

Capital

Issued, 

subscribed 

and paid-up 

capital

Share 

premium 

reserve

 Revaluation 

surplus on 

property, plant 

and equipment 

 Accumulated 

Profits 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

NOTE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before working capital changes 35 (14,407,909)     826,409             

Changes in working capital:

Decrease / (increase) in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (21,100)            (62,850)             

Contract receivables 608,122           -                    

Loans and advances (61,800,228)     18,271,284        

Other receivables (1,688,333)       (112,356)            

Increase/(Decrease)  in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (15,284,866)     17,385,345        

(78,186,405)     35,481,423        

Cash (used in)/generated from operations (92,594,314)     36,307,832        

Bank charges paid 29 (5,684)              (3,828)               

Income tax paid 15 (8,304,681)       (4,606,913)         

Gratuity paid 19.3 (2,160,181)       (1,210,272)         

(10,470,546)     (5,821,013)         

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (103,064,860)   30,486,819        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition in operating fixed assets 5 (55,490,294)     (289,701)            

Proceeds from disposal of Hyderabad land 155,000,000    -                    

Proceeds on realization of defence saving certificates 7 -                   1,300,413          

Return / (Acquisition) in long term security deposits 8 2,400,000        (2,550,000)         

Shares acquired from conversion of loan to equity -                   (27,967,000)       

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 101,909,706    (29,506,288)       

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents  (1,155,154) 980,531             

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,101,414 2,120,883          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16  1,946,260 3,101,414          

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                      CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                           DIRECTOR

Rupees

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2025

1 CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.1 Legal status and operations 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. 

2.2 Basis of measurement

The Company was incorporated under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies

Act, 2017) on August 12, 1947 as a Public Company Limited by shares. It's shares are quoted on

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited, Lahore Stock

Exchange Limited and Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited). 

The principal activity of the Company is execution of civil construction works.

The Company is a subsidiary of Bibojee Services (Private) Limited (the holding company), a private

company incorporated in Pakistan.

Geographical locations and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Sr.No Location Address

The registered office of the Company is situated at Gammon House, 400/2 Peshawar Road,

Rawalpindi.

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in

Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; and

During the current year ,Gammon Pakistan Limited has been placed in the “Non-Compliant

Segment” by PSX vide notice N-496 on May 14, 2025, under Regulation 5.11.1(a) for suspension

of core business operations. As a consequence the share registrar has been advised to freeze

shares of the sponsors, directors and senior management of the company. This does not effect the

general public.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and 

IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for

certain fixed assets which have been stated at revalued amount, investment properties which have

been stated at fair value, recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value and certain

other items as disclosed in relevant accounting policies.

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for

cash flow information.

1 Head office Mouza Chur Harpal, Near Chur Chowk, Main Peshawar Road, 

2 Rawalpindi Mouza Chur Harpal, Near Chur Chowk, Main Peshawar Road, 

43



GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Key judgements and estimates

-

- Fair value of investment property - Note 4.2 & 6

-

- Obligation of defined benefit obligation - Note 4.16 & 19

- Estimate of revenue and cost - Note 4.17

- Impairment of financial instruments based upon expected credit loss model - Note 4.19

- Estimation of provisions - Note 4.21

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - Note 4.22

-

3

3.1

a) IAS 1 : Classification of liabilities as current or non current January 1 , 2024

Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax asset -

Note 4.15, 20 & 32.

There are certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became applicable

to the Company on July 1, 2024. However, these amendments do not have any significant impact

on the Company’s financial statements.

These financial statements have been presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and

presentation currency of the Company.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards

as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. In addition, it

requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting

policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where

assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are documented in the

following accounting policies and notes, and relate primarily to:

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method and revalued amounts of property, plant

and equipment - Note 4.1 & 5

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of

the reporting period. As part of this amendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has

been removed and instead, the amendments requires that a right to defer settlement must have

substance and exist at the end of the reporting period. This right may be subject to a Company

complying with conditions (covenants) specified in a loan arrangement. At October 31, 2022, after

reconsidering certain aspects of the amendments, the IASB reconfirmed that only covenants with

which a Company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability

as current or non-current. Covenants with which the Company must comply after the reporting date

(i.e. future covenants) do not affect a liability’s classification at that date. However, when non-

current liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will now need to disclose information

to help users understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months

after the reporting date.

Effective Date

Allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on contract receivables and loans and advances - 

Note 4.6, 4.7, 10 & 11

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED

APPROVED STANDARDS

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year

and are relevant to the Company
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Effective Date

b) January 1 , 2024

Effective Date

c) January 1 , 2024

3.2

Effective Date

a) January 1 , 2025

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and 'IFRS 7 'Financial 

instruments disclosures' - Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments impact how a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments that arise in a sale-

and-leaseback transaction. On initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease

payments when it measures a lease liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After

initial recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for subsequent accounting of

the lease liability such that it recognises no gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains. The

amendments introduce a new accounting model for variable payments and will require seller-

lessees to reassess and potentially restate sale-and-leaseback transactions entered

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not 

yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective

for the financial year beginning on July 1, 2024 and have not been early adopted by the Company: 

Amendments to IAS 21 ‘The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ address situations

where a currency may lack exchangeability, often due to government-imposed controls. In such

cases, companies must estimate a spot exchange rate reflecting orderly transactions at the

measurement date. The amendments provide flexibility, allowing the use of observable rates

without adjustment or other estimation techniques, provided they meet the estimation objective.

The assessment considers factors like the availability of multiple rates, purpose, nature, and update

frequency. The amendments requires new disclosures, including the nature and financial impact of

non-exchangeability, the spot exchange rate used, the estimation process, and associated risks.

IFRS 16 : Sale and leaseback transaction

IAS 21 : Lack of exchangeability 

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of

Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures in May 2023, effective for annual

reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The amendments introduce additional

disclosure requirements and signposts within existing disclosure provisions that require entities to

provide qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements, including their

nature, terms and conditions, the carrying amounts and presentation of related financial liabilities,

the range of payment due dates for payables under such arrangements, and a reconciliation of

changes in those liabilities during the reporting period. The purpose of these amendments is to

enhance transparency and enable users of financial statements to understand the effects of

supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows, and liquidity risk exposure.

'The above mentioned amendments to published approved accounting standards did not have any

impact on the amounts recognized in prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the

current and future periods.
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Effective Date

 January 1 , 2026

b)

Effective Date

c)  January 1 , 2027

Effective Date

d)  July 1 , 2025

IFRS S2 :  Climate-Related Disclosures

3.4 Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and

not considered relevant to the Company

IFRS S2 is a thematic standard that builds on the requirements of IFRS S1 and is focused on

climate-related disclosures. IFRS S2 requires an entity to identify and disclose climate-related risks

and opportunities that could affect the entity’s prospects over the short, medium and long term. In

addition, IFRS S2 requires entities to consider other industry-based metrics and seven cross-

industry metrics when disclosing qualitative and quantitative components on how the entity uses

metrics and targets to measure, monitor and manage the identified material climate-related risks

and opportunities. The cross-industry metrics include disclosures on greenhouse gas (‘GHG’)

emissions, transition risks, physical risks, climate-related opportunities, capital deployment, internal

carbon prices and remuneration.The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and

interpretations in future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than

in presentation / disclosures. There are a number of other standards, amendments and

interpretations to the published standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the

Company and, therefore, have not been presented here. 

IFRS 7 : Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments Disclosure

IFRS 9 :  Financial Instruments

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ –

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments clarify the requirements for the timing of

recognition and derecognition of some financial assets and liabilities, with a new exception for some 

financial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system; clarify and add further

guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely payments of principal and

interest (SPPI) criterion; add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can

change cash flows (such as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of

environment, social and governance (ESG targets); and make updates to the disclosures for equity

instruments designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

These standards include the core framework for the disclosure of material information about

sustainability-related risks, opportunities across an entity’s value chain and set out the requirements

for entities to disclose information about climate-related risks and opportunities.

IFRS S1 requires entities to disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and

opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reporting in making

decisions relating to providing resources to the entity. The standards provide guidance on

identifying sustainability-related risks and opportunities, and the relevant disclosures to be made in

respect of those sustainability-related risks and opportunities.

IFRS 18 : Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

The new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, IFRS 18, focuses on

updates to the statement of profit or loss. It introduces key concepts such as the structure of the

statement of profit or loss, required disclosures for certain profit or loss performance measures

reported outside the financial statements (management-defined performance measures), and

enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation applicable to the primary financial

statements and notes.

IFRS S1 : General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-

Related Financial Information

There are other standards and amendments to published standards for accounting periods

beginning on or after 01 July 2024 that are not yet effective and are considered not to be relevant or

do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not

detailed in these financial statements.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Initial recognition

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

Subsequent measurement

Depreciation

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

Disposal

Judgement and estimates

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set

out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost / revalued amount less accumulated

depreciation and any identified impairment loss, if any, except for freehold land, which is stated at

revalued amount. 

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight-line basis on the cost or valuation of

all fixed assets from / to the date of acquisition / deletion, except for freehold land, to write-off ninety

percent of the value over the useful life of the assets. The remaining ten percent is written-off on

retirement is considered the residual value.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery is

recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as

“Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a

revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the

increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease

in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery is charged

to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on

property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation

reserve is not available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. The surplus on revaluation

buildings and plant and machinery to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of

deferred tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is

determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset

and is recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss. In case of the sale or

retirement of a revalued items, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the surplus on

revaluation of such item is transferred directly to the unappropriated profit. 

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular basis. The

Company revalues its operating fixed assets on regular basis. The effect of any changes in

estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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4.2 Investment properties

Recognition and measurement

Derecognition

Leases

4.3 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

With regard to activities as a lessor, the Company has entered into commercial property leases on

its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the

terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of

the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments

not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for

the contracts as operating leases. Rental income from investment property that is leased to a third

party under an operating lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the lease term and is included in ‘other income’ under note 28.

The assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are assessed at each reporting date to

determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an indication of

possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and compared with its

carrying amount. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated

recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, unless the

relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease. 

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount does not exceed

the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised. The Company recognises the reversal immediately in the

statement of profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with the

revaluation model. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a

revaluation increase.

Investment properties represent the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and

losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognized.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property following a

change in its use and differences arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the

item immediately prior to transfer and its fair value is recognized in surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item related surplus on revaluation

of property, plant and equipment is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss arising in this manner

is recognized immediately in the income statement.
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4.4 Investments at amortized cost

4.5 Stock of materials, stores, spares and loose tools

Measurement

Impairment

Judgments and estimates

4.6 Contract receivables

Measurement

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets

other than , stores, spares and loose tools and deferred tax assets, may be impaired. If such an

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent

of impairment loss, if any. Where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, assets

are written down to the recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized as

expense in the profit and loss account, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any

impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

These are carried at amortized cost less impairment loss, if any. Investments with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturity where management has both the positive intent and

ability to hold to maturity are classified at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gain

and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account when the investments are derecognized or

impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and

selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market

conditions. A review is made periodically on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and

decline in net realizable value and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any

such decline.

Contract receivables are measured at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful

receivable balance at the year-end.

A provision for impairment of contract receivables is established when there is objective evidence

that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the

receivables. The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Bad debts

are written-off in the statement of profit or loss on identification.

Stock of materials, stores, spares and loose tools is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. 

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method and comprises direct materials, direct labour

costs and direct overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business

less all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to

make the sale.

Cost of materials is determined using the first-in-first out method.

Cost of stores, spares and loose tools is determined using the weighted average method.

At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventory is impaired, the

carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss

is recognised immediately in the cost of sales in the statement of profit or loss.
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Judgments and estimates

4.7 Loans and advances

Judgments and estimates

4.8 Other receivables

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents 

4.10 Borrowings and borrowing costs

4.11 Trade and other payables

4.12 Dividend distribution

4.13 Joint venture partner's advances (including share of accrued profit)

4.14 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

The allowance for expected credit of the Company is based on the assessment as per IFRS 9 and

management’s continuous evaluation of the recoverability of the outstanding contract receivables.

In assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, management considers, among other

factors, the creditworthiness, past collection history of each customer along with future indications

and macro-economic factors of the industry, economy and country.

These are stated at cost less provision for doubtful advances, if any.

A provision for impairment of advances is established when there is objective evidence that the

Company will not be able to adjust all advances according to the original terms of the advances.

The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The allowance for expected credit of the Company is based on the assessment as per IFRS 9 and

management’s continuous evaluation of the reliability of the advances.

Other receivables are recognized at nominal amount which is fair value of the consideration to be

received in future.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the financial statements at cost. For the purposes of cash

flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and bank balances.

All borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added to the cost of those assets,

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs

are charged to income in the period in which these are incurred.

Creditors relating to trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of

consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the

Company.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in

which the dividends are approved by the company’s shareholders.

Profit / loss on advances obtained from a joint venture partner is recognized on 'accrual basis' in

accordance with the agreed percentage. 

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognized

in the period in which these are approved.
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4.15 Taxation

Current

Deferred

Levies

Judgement and estimates

Off-setting

4.16 Defined benefit plan (gratuity)

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it

relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity (if any), in which

case the tax amounts are recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income on current rates of taxation after taking

into account the rebates and tax credits available, if any, or 1.25% of turnover and corporate tax as

per section 113c, whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.

The Company recognizes tax liabilities for pending tax assessments using estimates based on

expert opinion obtained from tax/legal advisors. Differences, if any, between the income tax

provision and the tax liability finally determined is recorded when such liability is so determined. 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary

differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are

generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to 

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated

at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax

rates that have been enacted.

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding

provision for tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax

determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off current

tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority.

The Company measures defined benefit liabilities (assets) at the present value of its obligation

under defined benefit plan at the reporting date minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan

assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The obligation under defined benefit

plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the period in which

they occur. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any

amount paid/payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income is classified as levy in

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope

of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37.
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4.17 Revenue recognition

Contract revenue and cost

4.18 Foreign currency transactions

4.19 Financial Instruments

4.19.1 Financial assets

Amortized cost

-

-

Impairment

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or

loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The classification

depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All the financial assets of the Company as

at statement of financial position date are carried at amortized cost.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not

designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets

measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 

Revenue is recognized overtime as per IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" on the

basis of input method on the execution of contract activities where the outcome of the construction

contract can be estimated reliably as measured by the proportion that contract work performed to

date bears to the estimated total contract work. Variable consideration due to contract work, claims

and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of the construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is

recognized to the extent of the contract costs incurred that probably will be recoverable. Contract

costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

-Revenue from rental income is recognized on 'accrual basis'. 

-Interest income is also recognized on 'accrual basis'.

Input method is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting period to the current estimates of

total contract revenue and total contract costs. Any change in these estimates will affect the

contract revenue and contract costs accordingly. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates

of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. All exchange

differences are charged to profit and loss account.

In determining the liability for long-service payments management must make an estimate of salary

increases over the following five years, the discount rate to calculate present value over next five

years, and the number of employees expected to leave before they receive the benefits. 
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4.19.2 Financial liabilities

4.19.3 Recognition and measurement 

4.19.4 Derecognition

4.20 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

4.21 Provisions

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the

consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are

subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular

measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with

each item. 

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual right that

comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are extinguished

i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements

only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a

result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle

the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to

settle the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of

the discount is recognised as finance cost in the statement of profit or loss. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that

reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized

cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross

carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when

the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a

portion thereof. 

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.
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4.22 Contingent liabilities

4.23 Contract asset / liability

4.24 Segment reporting

4.25 Joint ventures and joint operations.

4.26 Earnings per share

4.27 Related party transactions

 

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at

arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party

transactions using valuation modes as admissible.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,

regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, the carrying amounts of

provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any

adjustments to the amount of previously recognised provision is recognised in the statement of

profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past

events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a

present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the

amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

The Company recognizes contract asset against the cost incurred and estimated earning which is

in excess of the amount billed to the customer to date. The Company recognizes the contract

liability against the amount billed to the customer which is in excess of the cost incurred and

estimated earning of the contract to date.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to

transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one reportable

segment. 

The Company's share in transactions and balances related to joint operations, in which the

Company has a working interest, are combined on a line by line basis with similar items in the

Company's financial statements. While equity method accounting is used for joint ventures.

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is

determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares.
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5 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

Year ended June 30, 2025

Net carrying value basis

Opening book value 252,756,400        8,052,160            1,878,672            612,710               592,292               258,104               109,078               -                       264,259,416        

Additions -                       35,449,494          7,300,000            191,300               231,000               9,847,500            -                       2,487,000            55,506,294          

Revaluation surplus/(deficit) 1,373,600            126,165               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,499,765            

Deletions - NBV (191,914,000)       (1,000,000)           -                       -                       (8,000)                  -                       -                       -                       (192,922,000)       

Depreciation charge -                       (259,319)              (678,979)              (196,694)              (185,462)              (44,505)                (27,780)                (69,083)                (1,461,822)           

Closing net book value 62,216,000          42,368,500          8,499,693            607,316               629,830               10,061,099          81,298                 2,417,917            126,881,653        

Gross carrying value basis

Cost/revalued amount 62,216,000          42,627,819          14,642,012          2,275,488            1,952,644            13,277,279          418,200               2,487,000            139,896,442        

Deletions -                       (13,750)                -                       -                       (16,000)                -                       -                       -                       (29,750)                

Revaluation adjustments -                       (245,569)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (245,569)              

62,216,000          42,368,500          14,642,012          2,275,488            1,936,644            13,277,279          418,200               2,487,000            139,621,123        

Accumulated depreciation -                       (259,319)              (6,142,319)           (1,668,172)           (1,314,814)           (3,216,180)           (336,902)              (69,083)                (13,006,789)         

Deletions -                       13,750                 -                       -                       8,000                   -                       -                       -                       21,750                 

Revaluation adjustments -                       245,569               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       245,569               

-                       -                       (6,142,319)           (1,668,172)           (1,306,814)           (3,216,180)           (336,902)              (69,083)                (12,739,470)         

62,216,000          42,368,500          8,499,693            607,316               629,830               10,061,099          81,298                 2,417,917            126,881,653        

Year ended June 30, 2024

Net carrying value basis

Opening book value 282,082,400        13,591,440          2,629,239            826,140               705,699               201,802               140,058               -                       300,176,778        

Additions -                       -                       -                       -                       81,000                 208,701               -                       -                       289,701               

Revaluation surplus/(deficit) 631,000               (41,744)                -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       589,256               

Deletions - NBV (29,957,000)         (5,223,875)           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (35,180,875)         

Depreciation charge -                       (273,661)              (750,567)              (213,430)              (194,407)              (152,399)              (30,980)                -                       (1,615,444)           

Closing net book value 252,756,400        8,052,160            1,878,672            612,710               592,292               258,104               109,078               -                       264,259,416        

Gross carrying value basis

Cost/revalued amount 252,756,400        8,325,821            7,342,012            2,084,188            1,721,644            3,429,779            418,200               -                       276,078,044        

Deletions -                       (66,125)                -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (66,125)                

Revaluation adjustments -                       (207,536)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (207,536)              

252,756,400        8,052,160            7,342,012            2,084,188            1,721,644            3,429,779            418,200               -                       275,804,383        

Accumulated depreciation -                       (273,661)              (5,463,340)           (1,471,478)           (1,129,352)           (3,171,675)           (309,122)              -                       (11,818,628)         

Deletions -                       66,125                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       66,125                 

Revaluation adjustments -                       207,536               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       207,536               

-                       -                       (5,463,340)           (1,471,478)           (1,129,352)           (3,171,675)           (309,122)              -                       (11,544,967)         

252,756,400        8,052,160            1,878,672            612,710               592,292               258,104               109,078               -                       264,259,416        

Depreciation rate % per Annum - 2.5 to 2.8 6 to 30 9 to 18 12 to 15 9 to 18 6 to 24 33.33

5.1

 

5.2

5.3 Depreciation has been allocated as follows: 2025 2024

NOTE

Contract expenditure 25 706,759               781,547               

General and administrative expenses 26 755,063               833,897               

1,461,822            1,615,444            

Total
Solar System 

with Grid

Gammon house Head office
4,004                                                   

Motor vehicles, 

cycles and boats

Construction 

equipments

Rupees

Computers and 

accessories

Furniture and 

fixturesDescription
Freehold land

Buildings on 

freehold land

Plant and 

machinery

The Company disposed of its freehold land located at Taluka Qasimabad, District Hyderabad, measuring approximately 5.8 Kanal, comprising four open plots situated at Deh Sari, Doraja Colony, Opposite Eid Gah &

Indus Gas Housing Society, Main Wadhoo Wah Road, Qasimabad Flyover, National Highway. The land was sold to an independent third party, Mr. Siraj Din, at arm’s length and in accordance with prevailing market

terms and conditions, pursuant to shareholders’ authorization for sale at maximum realizable value.

Rupees

Mouza Chur Harpal, Near Chur Chowk, Main Peshawar Road,

Rawalpindi Cantt.

PARTICULAR COVERED AREA (In Sq. Ft)

Freehold land and building on freehold land of the Company is located at Mouza Chuhr Harpal, Near Chuhr Chowk, Main Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi Cantt measuring 5.1 Kanal Details of workshop and residential

buildings of the company constructed on this land are as follows:

LOCATION 
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5.4

5.5

Independent valuers Revaluation dates

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2025

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2024

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2023

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2022

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2021

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2020

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2019

5.6

5.7

2025

Rupees

Freehold land              120,988 

Buildings on freehold land         38,382,066 

Plant and machinery           8,623,263 

Furniture and fixture           1,161,988 

Computers and accessories           1,282,307 

Motor vehicles, cycles and boats         10,119,655 

Construction equipment              273,403 

2025 2024

6 NOTE

Carrying amount as at June 30,

Gammon House - land and building 6.1 365,339,500     357,646,440     

6.1 The movement in this account is as follows:

Opening balance 357,646,440     479,831,160     

Less: Transfer during the year 6.2 -                    (121,626,000)    

6.4 

365,339,500     357,646,440     

6.2

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not available

for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 240 and fourth schedule of the

Companies Act, 2017.

This represents surplus on book values resulted from revaluations of operating fixed assets based

on fair value / market value estimated by independent valuers adjusted only by surplus realized on

disposal of revalued assets and incremental depreciation arising out of revaluation. Revaluation of

land and buildings was based upon fair market value and valuation for other operating assets was

conducted during 2019 which was based upon depreciated replacement costs to reflect the residual

service potential of the assets taking account of age, condition and obsolescence. Details of

revaluation are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets would

have been as follows:

The forced sale value of the revalued freehold land and buildings at date of statement of financial

position has been assessed at Rs. 88,896,736/-.

7,693,060         (558,720)           

Rupees

Net fair value gain / (loss) on revaluation shown 

in profit and loss account

In the previous year, the Company had transferred barren land at Chak Beli, measuring 209.70

Kanals, to Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited (GPPL) against the issuance of 12,162,600

shares of Rs. 10 each as non-cash consideration, valued at Rs. 121.63 million based on an

independent revaluation.
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6.3

6.4

7 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Unquoted

Subsidiary

7.1 189,340,000     189,340,000     

7.1

2025 2024

8 LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Tender money deposit 150,000            2,550,000         

Others security deposits 1,200,600         1,200,600         

1,350,600         3,750,600         

8.1

9 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Consumable materials  176,655  176,655 

Stores 9.1 & 9.2  11,388,313  11,367,213 

Spares  569,019  569,019 

Loose tools  20,575  20,575 

Other stocks  200,042  200,042 

 12,354,604  12,333,504 

It represents the shareholding of the Company in Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited,

making it a subsidiary effective from November 16, 2021. There is no change in the shareholding

during the current year (2024: 69.99%).

This represents part of Gammon House which is held to earn rentals and for capital appreciation

and shown under the head "Investment property". The Company has adopted fair value model for

valuation.

In 2013, management purchased and installed billboards at Gammon House, which were treated as

additions to investment property.

In the previous year, the Company had transferred barren land at Chak Beli, measuring 209.70

Kanals, to Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited (GPPL) against the issuance of 12,162,600

shares of Rs. 10 each as non-cash consideration, valued at Rs. 121.63 million based on an

independent revaluation.

As of June 30, 2025, the company revalued all of its investment properties through an independent

valuer, Impulse (Private) Limited. The revaluation resulted in a net fair value gain of Rs. 7,693,060

(2024: net fair value loss of Rs. 558,720).

There are no non-cancellable fixed rate operating leases over the Company’s investment property,

land and buildings. 

Forced sale value of the investment property at date of statement of financial position is assessed

at Rs 310,538,264 / -.

Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited with

69.99% Holding (2024: 69.99%).

Rupees

It represent deposits against receipt of non-financial services. These are carried at nominal value as

effect by amortization is not material in respect of these financial statements.
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9.1 Balance as at June 30, 22,389,169       22,368,069       

Impairment - obsolete and slow moving item (11,000,856)      (11,000,856)      

11,388,313       11,367,213       

9.2

2025 2024

NOTE

10 CONTRACT RECEIVABLES

Owned

Unsecured - considered good

Against billings:

- completed contracts 76,107,566       76,107,565       

Provision for expected credit loss 10.1 (73,512,276)      (73,512,276)      

2,595,290         2,595,289         

Against retention money:

- completed contracts 79,929,396       80,537,519       

Provision for expected credit loss 10.1 (38,066,851)      (38,066,851)      

41,862,545       42,470,668       

Joint venture:

- against billings 17,054,553       17,054,553       

- against retention money 12,936,380       12,936,380       

29,990,933       29,990,933       

Provision for expected credit loss 10.1 (29,990,933)      (29,990,933)      

-                    -                    

44,457,835       45,065,957       

10.1

2025 2024

NOTE

Opening balance 141,570,060     141,570,060     

(Reversed)/charged during the year -                    -                    

141,570,060     141,570,060     

11

Under the following captions:

Contract asset on incomplete projects 11.1 65,049,779       65,049,779       

11.1 This comprises as follows:

Cost incurred on incomplete projects 1,875,995,062  1,875,995,062  

Estimated earnings 204,237,252     204,237,252     

2,080,232,314  2,080,232,314  

Billings to date (2,015,182,535) (2,015,182,535) 

65,049,779       65,049,779       

Management, in the prior years, carried out an exercise to identify long outstanding receivable

balances comprising of progress billings and retention money which are not likely to be received

due to various reasons. Similarly, during the year, management carried out the ECL assessment

and identified provision for expected credit loss as follows:

Stores and spares also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not

distinguishable at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumption resulting in

capital expenditure are capitalized in cost of respective assets.

Rupees

Rupees

CONTRACT ASSET
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12 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured - considered good

To employees / project managers for expenses 667,908            1,038,873         

To Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited 12.1 72,850,322       8,292,626         

To suppliers 8,163,348         7,694,988         

To sub - contractors 2,955,720         2,955,720         

84,637,299       19,982,207       

Doubtful advances 26,387,232       26,387,232       

111,024,531     46,369,439       

Provision for expected credit loss 12.2 (26,387,232)      (26,387,232)      

84,637,299       19,982,207       

12.1

12.2

2025 2024

NOTE

Opening balance 26,387,233       26,387,233       

(Reversed)/charge during the year -                    -                    

26,387,233       26,387,233       

13 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Unsecured:

- Considered good

Other receivables 13.1 2,597,489         909,156            

13.1

2025 2024

NOTE

Janana De Malucho Textile Limited 146,410            146,410            

Bannu Woolen Mills Limited 109,508            163,468            

Ghandhara Industry 563,680            -                    

Kisa Khani kabab (Pvt) Limited 1,200,000         -                    

2,019,598         309,878            

Rupees

Management, in the previous years, carried out an exercise to identify long outstanding receivable

balances comprising of advances to staff and suppliers, which are not likely to be received due to

various reasons. Similarly during the year, management carried out the assessment and identified

provision for expected credit losses as follows:

This represents the short term borrowing provided to Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited

under loan agreement dated April 1,2024 which was modified with effect from July 1,2024.The

terms of loan carries interest at per day KIBOR plus 0.25% and is repayable in accordance with the

mutually agreed terms and conditions. The maximum aggregate balance calculated with regards to

the month-end balance is Rs. 71,104,098.

This amount includes rental income receivable from related parties as follows:

Rupees
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13.2 Aging of receivable from related parties:

1-90 days 2,019,598         309,878            

90-180 days -                    -                    

Over 180 days -                    -                    

2,019,598         309,878            

13.3

2025 2024

NOTE

14 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT 

Considered good 

Balance as at July 01, 90,496,383       85,272,052       

Advance income tax adjusted 15 4,104,455         5,224,331         

94,600,838       90,496,383       

15 TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 01, 4,104,455         5,224,331         

Transferred to tax refunds due from Government 14 (4,104,455)        (5,224,331)        

-                    -                    

Provision for taxation 31 -                    (502,458)           

Advance income tax 8,304,681         4,606,913         

8,304,681         4,104,455         

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 1,020,385         418,266            

Cash at bank: local currency

- Current accounts 16.1 25,927              1,783,200         

- Savings accounts 16.2 10,505              10,505              

- Deposit accounts 16.3 889,443            889,443            

925,875            2,683,148         

1,946,260         3,101,414         

16.1

16.2

16.3 The entire balance as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024 is under a bank's lien against

guarantees issued by the bank.

Maximum balance due from related party at end of any month during the year is Rs. 1,270,532

(2024: Rs. 2,030,117).

Rupees

The PLS accounts remained dormant during the year. Consequently, no profit was accrued or 

credited to these accounts, and their balances remained unchanged from those reported in the 

previous year (2024: profit rates ranged from 19.5% to 21%).

It include Rupees 7,995/- (2024: RS. 7,995/-) attached under the instructions of Sindh Revenue

Board in prior years against the order no 72 in 2018 for the departmental recovery of Rupees

51.696 million. On December 23, 2020 the Commissioner Appeals order in favour of the company

and the company is under process to detach these bank accounts.
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17 SHARE CAPITAL

        
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2025 2024

NOTE

2025 2024

226,273,200     226,273,200     

25,628,450       25,628,450       

30,760,660       30,760,660       

     282,662,310       282,662,310 

17.1

Bibojee Services (Private) Limited - Parent Company

17.2  203,690,560  203,690,560 

Directors and their spouses / minor children

 958,550  958,550 

 204,649,110  204,649,110 

17.2

17.3

17.4 Authorized share capital:

18

2025 2024

NOTE

Balance brought forward 388,444,139     436,777,683     

Add: Revaluations during the year 1,499,765         589,256            

Less:

1,884,181         1,441,959         

270,939,099     45,547,870       

273,765,110     48,922,800       

116,178,794     388,444,139     

Number of ordinary

 shares of Rs.10/- each 

 3,076,066 

 2,562,845 

Related deferred tax liability during the year

transferred to profit and loss account

Transferred to equity in respect of incremental

depreciation charged during the year - net of

deferred tax

Rupees

This represents 30,000,000 (2024: 30,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs.

300,000,000 (2024: Rs. 300,000,000).

 28,266,231 

Rupees

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 22,627,320  22,627,320 Fully paid in cash

Issued as fully paid

bonus shares

The parent company Bibojee Services (Private) Limited held 72.06% shares (2024: 72.06%

shares) in Gammon Pakistan Limited as at June 30, 2025.

941,830            1,932,971         

Revaluation adjustment due to transfer of asset

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is restated and now presented as a

separate capital reserve in the financial statements.

20,369,056 (2024: 20,369,056) ordinary shares 

of Rs 10 each

 2,562,845 

All ordinary shareholders have same rights regarding voting, board selection, right of first refusal

and block voting.

This includes shares held by related parties as 

95,855 (2024: 95,855) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

 3,076,066 

 28,266,231 

Issued against 

conversion of loans
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Less: Related deferred tax effect :

Opening balance - as previously reported 6,017,855         7,962,931         

Revaluation during the year 36,588              (12,106)             

Revaluation adjustment due to transfer of asset (172,235)           (1,344,001)        

5,112,613         6,017,855         

111,066,181     382,426,284     

19 DEFERRED LIABILITY

19.1 Gratuity

19.2

2025 2024

NOTE

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 19.3 1,007,203         606,649            

Benefits due but not paid during the year 19.3 3,635,760         5,795,941         

         4,642,963           6,402,590 

19.3 Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

Present value of defined benefit obligations 606,649            1,493,221         

Benefits due but not paid as at June 30, 5,795,941         6,059,213         

Service cost 52,677              53,710              

Interest on defined benefit obligations 89,481              165,705            

Benefits paid during the year (2,160,181)        (1,210,272)        

Benefit due but not paid at the year end (3,635,760)        (5,795,941)        

Actuarial loss/(gain) 258,396            (158,987)           

         1,007,203              606,649 

19.4

Actuarial (gain) due to Change in financial assumptions (517)                  (430)                  

Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment 258,913            (158,557)           

258,396            (158,987)           

19.5

Current service costs 52,677              53,710              

Interest cost 89,481              165,705            

            142,158 219,415            

The amounts recognised in the statement of

profit or loss:

The company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme. The scheme provides for terminal benefits

for all its permanent employees whose period of service exceeds six months. Employees are

entitled to gratuity on the basis of one gross salary for each completed one year of service after

the minimum qualifying period. Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out as at

June 30, 2025 using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Final salary risk: The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than

what the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit

amount would also increase proportionately.

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on defined obligation due to:

Incremental depreciation charged during the

year transferred to profit and loss account
(588,969)           

Remeasurement chargeable to statement of other

comprehensive income

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

Rupees

The Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:

(769,595)           
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19.6

Opening defined benefit obligation  6,402,590  7,552,434 

Service cost 52,677              53,710              

Interest cost 89,481              165,705            

Actuarial (gains) 258,396            (158,987)           

Benefits paid (2,160,181)        (1,210,272)        

4,642,963         6,402,590         

19.7

Discount rate as at June 30, 2025 11.75%

Future salary increases                         10.75%

Proportion of employees opting for early retirement                                           

Mortality rate SLIC (2001-5) Mortality table

Average expected remaining working lifetime of members 3 Years

Average duration of liability 3 Years

19.8 Comparison of five years

2025 2024 2023 2022

19.9

Sensitivity analysis

The impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Discount rate 975,832            1,037,710         

Salary increase 1,039,444         975,735            

Expected future payments

Within one year 988,874            

More than one year but less than five years 3,734,410         

Above five years -                    

4,723,284         

Rupees 

 1,007,203  1,493,221 

1 % increase in 

assumption 

19.11

2025

The charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2026 is estimated to be

Rs. 176,686.

There are no plan assets, therefore, disclosure in respect to plan assets required as per IAS-19

"Employee Benefits" has not been made in these financial statements. 

19.10

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustment on obligation

for the current and preceding four years is as follows: 

Present value of

defined benefit

obligation 

1 % decrease  

in assumption 

Rupees

2021

Principal actuarial assumptions (financial and demographic) at the end of the reporting

period (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

 0.506% to 14.344%

 4,319,738 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit

obligation are as follows:

 606,649 

19.12

 3,030,550 
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20 DEFERRED TAXATION

2025 2024

NOTE

Deferred tax 20.1 9,599,887         (10,866,023)      

Tax rate 29% 29%

20.1 Deferred tax Asset-net

20.1.1 Analysis of change in deferred tax

The gross movement in the deferred tax Assets during the year is as follows:

2025 2024

NOTE

Opening balance (10,866,023)      29,326,126       

Charged to statement of profit or loss 32 20,429,322       (40,180,043)      

Charged to other comprehensive income 18 36,588              (12,106)             

9,599,887         (10,866,023)      

20.1.2 Net deferred tax liability is comprised of as follows: 2025 2024

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax depreciation allowed 94,172,294       66,399,356       

Surplus on revaluation of PPE 5,112,611         6,017,855         

99,284,905       72,417,211       

Deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful receivables (41,055,317)      (41,055,317)      

Provision for doubtful loan and advances (7,652,297)        (7,652,299)        

Deferred tax asset on brought forward losses (29,445,420)      (22,533,342)      

Provision for overseas loan (10,185,525)      (10,185,525)      

Gratuity payable (1,346,459)        (1,856,751)        

(89,685,018)      (83,283,234)      

9,599,887         (10,866,023)      

20.2 Deferred tax asset of Rs. 29,445,420 due to brought forward losses has been recognized in the

current financial statements, as in the opinion of the management there is certainty regarding

realisability of the amount (2024: Rs. 22,533,342)

Rupees

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction,

and the law allows net settlement.

Rupees

Rupees
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2025 2024

NOTE

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Directors current accounts 21.1 26,577,114       26,577,114       

Sundry creditors 37,248,580       33,390,422       

Advance rent 2,539,864         2,362,577         

Due to sub-contractors 16,999,998       24,543,700       

Accrued expenses 36,190,143       46,752,906       

Due to employees and others 21.2 6,444,973         9,009,261         

Taxes payable 3,222,579 1,727,895         

Joint venture partners' share of profit 1,620,715         1,620,715         

Workers welfare fund payable  1.00 144,244            

Other provisions 21.3 35,122,500       35,122,500       

     165,966,468       181,251,334 

21.1

21.2

21.3

2025 2024

NOTE

22 UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

 1,442,230  1,442,230 

The SECP has also directed the Company's Chief Executive to distribute the amount of Rs. 9.153

million to members of the provident fund trust including the employees / directors / ex-directors of

the Company at the time of closure of provident fund trust in the year 1987 as per their entitlement

and to submit an Auditors' certificate confirming that all outstanding money of the fund has been

paid to the members in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the repealed Ordinance.

The Company opened a separate bank account and transferred the entire amount into it.

Furthermore, an amount of  Rs. 7.589 million were paid to members up to December 31, 2019.

This includes advances paid by directors in order to meet day to day expenses from Chairman

Gen.(Rtd) Mr. Ali kuli khan and Director Khalid Kuli Khan amounting to Rs. 22,553,800/- (2024:

Rs.22,553,800) and Rs. 4,023,314/- ( 2024: Rs. 4,023,314) respectively which are interest free and

reimbursable on demand.

Rupees

Rupees

Unclaimed dividend

This balance includes amounts aggregating Rs. 1.563 million (2024: Rs. 1.563 million) payable in

respect of the loans obtained from the Company's Employees' Provident Fund (the Fund) during the

period from 1995 to 1999. The SECP, during May 2008, had issued show-cause notices to some of

the existing directors as well as ex-directors under various sections of the repealed Companies

Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The SECP, vide its three orders dated 25 June, 2009, had

imposed penalties aggregating Rs. 1.005 million under various sections of the Ordinance on some

of the existing directors and ex-directors in their personal capacity. 

These represent provisions made for the potential liability, in respect of borrowings of Saudi Riyals

2.50 million and Saudi Riyals 5 million during the year 1986 for the Saudi Operations of the

Company, that the Company may have to incur as a result of settlement of overseas dues of

National Bank of Pakistan in accordance with the Incentive Scheme under the State Bank of

Pakistan's Circular No.19 of 05 June,1997 (For further detail please refer note 24.2(a) of these

financial statements).
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23 JOINT VENTURE PARTNER'S ADVANCES

24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 Contingent assets

24.2 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

(c )

24.3 Commitments

(a) Guarantees issued by a commercial bank and insurance companies in respect of financial and

operational obligations of the Company to various institutions and corporate bodies, aggregate Rs.

50.062 million (2024: Rs. 50.062 million).

The National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) vide its letter number NBP/CORP/2022/107 has categorically

confirmed that the company does not owe any amount in respect of overseas dues of NBP and the

e-CIB portal of the State Bank of Pakistan has also not reported any overdue amount. Therefore,

outcome of the case is pending before the Sindh High Court since 2000 cannot be determined at

this stage. However the legal advisor is confident of a favourable outcome.

Proceedings under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 were initiated and

completed against the company for the tax year 2016 and 2018 by determining tax payable of

Rupees 1,677,422/- and Rupees 16,764,436/- respectively. The cases have been heard by the

Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) whose decision is awaited. Legal counsel of the company

is confident to have a favourable decision in due course of time.

In view of the above and since the company has made provision for the contingent liability (note

21.3 above) in the financial statements in accordance with the Incentive Scheme under the State

Bank of Pakistan's Circular No. 19 of 05 June, 1997, the management is of the opinion that there is

no further requirement for any provision on this account as no adverse effect is expected. The same

has been endorsed by the Company's Board of Directors (BOD) and the legal advisor in his opinion.

Furthermore, the BOD has agreed to settle any liability that may arise consequent upon the

outcome of the above matter.

In the ordinary course of business various parties have filed legal cases against the Company,

which have not been admitted as liabilities; accordingly, no provision has been considered

necessary against these claims till their final outcome. The legal advisor of the Company is of the

opinion that these cases are expected to be decided in favour of the Company and therefore no

provision has been made in these financial statements for any liability that may arise consequent

upon the result of above law suits.

The Company's commitments as at balance sheet date are as follows: 

These advance have been obtained under various Joint Venture agreements to finance the

ongoing projects in the previous years. The joint venture partner is entitled to share 50% of the

projects' profit financed out of these advances.

The Company had lodged a claim with National Highway Authority amounting Rs. 201.177 million

(2024: Rs. 201.177 million) against M/s Bayinder for recovery of losses suffered by the Company

attributable to the cessation of work at Islamabad - Peshawar Motorway Project.

Regarding tax year 2015 Best judgment assessment was made against the company under section

121 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 determining tax chargeable at Rupees 46,282,156/- and tax 

payable of Rupees. 22,636,470/- The Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who upheld the

assessment order of Deputy Commission Inland Revenue. Later on, the Appellate Tribunal Inland

Revenue remanded back the case to the assessing officers which is yet to set for hearing. Legal

counsel of the company is confident to have a favourable decision in due course of time.

Punjab Revenue Authority completed its proceedings against the company for non-payment of

Rupees 68,290,380/- as provincial tax during the tax periods from June 2013 to March 2018. The

case is pending before the Appellate Tribunal Punjab Revenue Authority. Legal counsel of the

company is confident to have a favourable decision in due course of time.
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25 CONTRACT EXPENDITURE 2025 2024

NOTE

Salaries and wages -                    86,800              

Cartage, traveling and conveyance -                    36,900              

Site auxiliary works and temporary hutting -                    3,200                

Sundry expenses -                    12,480              

Depreciation 5.3 706,759            781,547            

706,759            920,927            

26 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 16,310,114       16,855,211       

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 19.5 142,158            219,415            

Repair and maintenance 3,236,117         628,364            

Rent, rates and taxes 12,043,611       4,924,320         

Communication 515,289            237,602            

Advertisement and publicity 153,620            275,500            

Legal and professional charges 2,282,400         3,651,202         

Power and electricity 1,368,804         1,068,002         

Travelling and conveyance 2,847,686         1,650,478         

Works in view -                    100,950            

Fee and subscription 805,380            912,311            

Other sundry expenses 24,228,582       2,593,578         

Depreciation 5.3 755,063            833,897            

64,688,824       33,950,830       

27 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditor remuneration 27.1 685,125            685,125            

Loss on sale of operating fixed assets 37,914,000       -                    

Worker welfare fund -                    60,319              

38,599,125       745,444            

27.1 Auditor remuneration

Statutory audit 498,750            498,750            

Half yearly review 165,375            165,375            

Fee for other certifications 21,000              21,000              

685,125            685,125            

Rupees
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2025 2024

28 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:

Profit on deposit and PLS accounts -                    1,305                

-                    410,513            

Income from non-financial assets:

Rental income on investment property 37,512,405       33,241,083       

8,000                66,125              

Markup on advances to subsidiary 2,854,864         460,508            

Gain on sale of obsolete stores & spares 1,400,360         955,850            

Miscellaneous income 11,156,054       -                    

52,931,683       35,135,384       

29 BANK CHARGES 

Bank charges 5,684                3,828                

30 FAIR VALUE (LOSS)/GAIN ON INVESTMENT PROPERTY

30.1

2025 2024

31 MINIMUM TAXES NOTE

Minimum Taxes 31.1 -                    502,458            

31.1

2025 2024

NOTE

32 TAXATION

Current year -                    -                    

Deferred tax 20,429,322       (40,180,043)      

20,429,322       (40,180,043)      

32.1

32.2

The company, as of June 30, 2025, had revalued all of its investment property. The revaluation

exercise was carried out by Impulse (Private) Limited, and the revaluation resulted in a net fair

value gain amounting to Rs. 7,693,060 (2024: net fair value loss of Rs. 558,720). During the

previous year, the Company also transferred investment property to its subsidiary, Gammon

Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited, against the issuance of shares to enhance its investment in the

subsidiary, recognizing a gain of Rs. 4.00 million on the transaction.

Rupees

Rupees

The applicable income tax rate for the Tax Year 2025 and beyond is 29% on account of changes

made to Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act 2023. Therefore, deferred tax is

computed at the rate of 29% applicable to the period when temporary differences are expected to

be reversed / utilized.

This represents minimum tax under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance and is shown separately

as per the amendments in the applicable standard as disclosed in the policy note 4.15 .

Gain on sale of operating fixed 

assets and investment property

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2025 as the Company's income was taxable under separate taxation regime of the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Rupees

Gain realized on maturity of defense 

saving certificate
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33 EARING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

2025 2024

(Loss)/ Profit after tax RUPEES (63,804,970)      42,633,220       

28,266,231       28,266,231       

Basic and diluted (loss)/ earning per share RUPEES (2.26)                  1.51 

33.1 Earning per share comprises as follows: 2025 2024

Distributable profit (2.53)                 1.39                  

Undistributable - unrealized fair value gains 0.27                  0.12                  

(2.26)                 1.51                  

33.2

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2025 2024

a)

-                    188,840,000     

72,850,322       8,252,815         

44,581,494       9,501,678         

Name of the Related

Party

Transaction during 

the year Rupees

Subsidiary 

Shares acquired

Loan Provided

Gammon Pakistan 

Precast (Private) 

Limited

Shareholder

Repayment((through 

renovation of Parent 

company’s building)

Relationshi

p 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at

the end of the year
NUMBERS

Under the provisions of Companies Act, 2017 unrealized gain on fair value of investment property is

not distributable as dividend.

Related parties comprise of the holding company, subsidiaries, associated companies, directors

and executives. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with

various related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under relevant notes.

Remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed in note 36 whereas other significant

transactions with related parties are disclosed here.

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:
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b) Associated Companies

Rental income 5,032,851         4,538,712         

Rental received (5,032,851)        (4,538,712)        

Rental income 4,992,588         4,502,109         

Rental received (4,428,908)        (4,568,659)        

Rental income -                    73,205              

Rental received -                    -                    

Rental income 6,978,524         6,344,113         

Rental received (6,978,524)        (6,541,302)        

Rental income 1,200,000         -                    

Rental received -                    -                    

34.1

2025 2024

NOTE

35 PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Loss)/ Profit before taxation (43,375,648)      2,955,635         

Adjustment for:

Depreciation 5 1,461,822         1,615,444         

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 26 142,158            219,415            

Fair value gain on investment property 30 (7,693,060)        (3,441,280)        

Loss on sale of operating fixed assets 27 37,914,000       -                    

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 28 (8,000)               (66,125)             

Markup on advances to associated undertaking 28 (2,854,864)        (460,508)           

Finance cost 29 5,684                3,828                

28,967,739       (2,129,226)        

(14,407,909)      826,409            

Rupees

Bannu Woollen Mills

Limited

Ghandhara Industries

Limited

Janana De Malucho

Textile Mills Limited

Ghandhara              
Automobiles Limited

Common 

Directorship

Common 

Directorship

Common 

Directorship

The status of outstanding balances of related parties as at June 30, 2025 are included in other

receivable (note 13.1) and trade and other payables (note 21).

Common 

Directorship

Kissa Khani (pvt)

Limited

Common 

Directorship
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36 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

a)

Chief Chief

Executive Executive

-              -                3,773,847    3,773,847    -               -              4,944,972     4,944,972     

-              -                754,775       754,775       -               -              863,004        863,004        

-              -                754,764       754,764       -               -              863,004        863,004        

-              -                754,764       754,764       -               -              863,004        863,004        

-              -                1,509,528    1,509,528    -               -              1,916,736     1,916,736     

Total -              -                7,547,678    7,547,678    -               -              9,450,720     9,450,720     

Number of persons 1 7 2 10 1 7 3 11

b)

c)

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of

the Company is as follows:

2025 2024

Directors Executives Total Directors Executives Total

-------------------------- Rupees -------------------------- -------------------------- Rupees --------------------------

No remuneration was paid to the chief executive during the year and to the directors during the current year and preceding financial years. 

The Chief Executive and certain executives are also provided with cars for business and personal use in accordance with the Company car

scheme.

Others allowances

Managerial remuneration

House rent

Medical

Utilities
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37 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows: 

Maturity Maturity
upto one after one

year year

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Long term investments 189,340,000    -              -             -              189,340,000    

Long term security deposits 1,350,600        -              -             -              1,350,600        

Contract receivables 44,457,835      -              -             -              44,457,835      

Other receivables 2,597,489        -              -             -              2,597,489        

Contract asset 65,049,779      -              -             -              65,049,779      

Cash and bank balances 1,946,260        899,948      -             899,948      1,046,312        

304,741,963    899,948      -             899,948      303,842,015    

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Trade and other payables 165,966,468    -              -             -              165,966,468    

Unclaimed dividends 1,442,230        -              -             -              1,442,230        

Deferred liability 4,642,963        -              -             -              4,642,963        

Joint venture partner's advances 30,059,542      -              -             -              30,059,542      

202,111,203    -              -             -              202,111,203    

On balance sheet gap 102,630,760    899,948      -             899,948      101,730,812    

Off Balance sheet Items

(136,794,238)   -              -             -              (136,794,238)  

Total Gap (34,163,478)     899,948      -             899,948      (35,063,426)    

Maturity Maturity
upto one after one

year year

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Long term investments 189,340,000    -              -             -              189,340,000    

Long term security deposits 3,750,600        -              -             -              3,750,600        

45,065,957      -              -             -              45,065,957      

Other receivables 909,156           -              -             -              909,156           

Contract asset 65,049,779      -              -             -              65,049,779      

Cash and bank balances 3,101,414        899,948      -             899,948       2,201,466 

307,216,906    899,948      -             899,948      306,316,958    

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Trade and other payables 181,251,334    -              -             -              181,251,334    

Unclaimed dividends 1,442,230        -              -             -              1,442,230        

Deferred liability 6,402,590        -              -             -              6,402,590        

Joint venture partner's advances 30,059,542      -              -             -              30,059,542      

219,155,696    -              -             -              219,155,696    

On balance sheet gap 88,061,210      899,948      -             899,948      87,161,262      

Off Balance sheet Items

Financial contingencies and commitments(136,794,238)   -              -             -              (136,794,238)  

Total Gap (48,733,028)     899,948      -             899,948      (49,632,976)    

37.1

Financial contingencies and 

commitments

2025

2024

Total

Interest/mark up bearing Non interest / 

mark up 

bearing
Sub-total

Rupees

Effective interest rates are mentioned in the respective notes to the financial statements.

Contract receivables

Total

Interest/mark up bearing Non interest / 

mark up 

bearing
Sub-total

Rupees
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38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

38.1 Risk management policies

38.2 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

2025 2024

NOTE

Long term security deposits 8 1,350,600       3,750,600      

Contract receivables 10 44,457,835     45,065,957    

Other receivables 13 2,597,489       909,156         

Contract asset 11 65,049,779     65,049,779    

Bank balances 16 925,875          2,683,148      

114,381,577   117,458,640  

The aging of contract receivables at the reporting date is:

-                  -                 

Past due 1-30 days -                  -                 

Past due 30-90 days -                  -                 

Past due 90 days 44,457,835     45,065,957    

44,457,835     45,065,957    

Concentration of credit risk

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit

reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other factors.

Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business

activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual

obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The

Company believes that it is not exposed to any major concentration of credit risk. 

Rupees

All the trade contract receivables at balance sheet date represent domestic parties.

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with major bank and monitoring exposure limits on

continuous basis.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital

with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter

parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other receivables. The

Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with

the internal guidelines and regulator requirements.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures before any

credit enhancements. Out of total financial assets, the financial assets which are subject to credit risk

amounted to Rs. 114,381,577/- (2024: Rs. 117,458,640). The carrying amounts of financial assets

exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as under:

Not past due

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holders’ value.

Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of

risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to

credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising from

the financial instruments it holds.
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38.3 Liquidity risk

Unclaimed Dividend 1,442,230           1,442,230           -                    1,442,230        -                -                   -                 

Deferred Liability  4,642,963           -                      -                    -                  -                4,642,963        -                 

202,111,203       197,468,240       196,026,010     1,442,230        -                4,642,963        -                 

Trade and Other 

Payable 

181,251,334       181,251,334       181,251,334     -                  -                -                   -                 

Unclaimed Dividend 1,442,230           1,442,230           -                    1,442,230        -                -                   -                 

Deferred Liability  6,402,590           -                      -                    -                  -                6,402,590        -                 

219,155,696       212,753,106       211,310,876     1,442,230        -                6,402,590        -                 

-                   -                 

-                  -                -                   -                 

30,059,542         30,059,542         30,059,542       -                  -                

------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------

Trade and Other 

Payable 

Joint Venture 

partner's advance 

2024

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and

stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The followings are the contractual

maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments if any and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

2025

Carrying Amount
Contractual 

Cash Flow

Six Month or 

Less

Six to Twelve 

Month 

One to Two 

Year 

Two to Five 

Year 
Over Five Year 

165,966,468       165,966,468       165,966,468     

Joint Venture partner's 

advance 

Over Five Year 

------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------

Carrying Amount Contractual Cash 

Flow

Six Month or 

Less

Six to Twelve 

Month 

One to Two 

Year 

Two to Five 

Year 

30,059,542         30,059,542         30,059,542       -                  -                -                   -                 
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38.4 Market risk

a) Currency risk

b) Interest rate risk 

c) Other price risk

39 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost 

Contract receivables 44,457,835        44,457,835    45,065,957      45,065,957          

Contract asset 65,049,779        65,049,779    65,049,779      65,049,779          

Loans and advances 84,637,299        84,637,299    19,982,207      19,982,207          

Other receivables 2,597,489          2,597,489      909,156           909,156               

Cash and bank balances 1,946,260          1,946,260      3,101,414        3,101,414            

198,688,662      198,688,662  134,108,513    134,108,513        

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual

cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar financial

instruments, if relevant.

June 30,2025 June 30,2024

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity

prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arise in financial instruments that are denominated in

foreign currencies i.e. in a currency other then the functional currency in which they are measured.

Presently the Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk except contingencies as disclosed in note

24.2 to these financial statements.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from long term

loans and short borrowings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk. 

The Company is not exposed to any material interest rate risk, except fixed rate financial instrument (long

term investment- note 7 ) which has a fixed rate of interest, therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been

presented.

At the year end the Company is not exposed to price risk since there are no financial instruments whose fair

value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable

willing parties in arms length transactions.

The financial instruments that are not traded in active market are carried at cost and are tested for

impairment according to IFRS 9. The carrying amount of trade receivables and payables are assumed to

approximate their fair values.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their

fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those

changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting

all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

Carrying 

Amount 
Fair value Carrying Amount Fair Value 

Rupees 
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Liabilities Carried at Amortized Cost 

165,966,468      165,966,468  181,251,334    181,251,334        

1,442,230          1,442,230      1,442,230        1,442,230            

30,059,542        30,059,542    30,059,542      30,059,542          

197,468,240      197,468,240  212,753,106    212,753,106        

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Freehold Land and Building -                     -                 104,584,500    104,584,500        

-                     -                 469,924,000    469,924,000        

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Freehold Land and Building -                     -                  260,808,560  260,808,560 

-                     -                  618,455,000  618,455,000 

2025 2024

NOTE

Reconciliation of net increase in level 3 fair values:

     618,455,000         775,505,000 

       35,449,494                          -   

   (192,914,000)        (160,806,875)

5           (259,319)               (273,661)

Remeasurement recognized in profit or loss          7,693,060             3,441,280 

         1,499,765                589,256 

     469,924,000         618,455,000 

Depreciation charged during the year

The investment property and freehold land and building in operating fixed assets were valued on June 30,

2025 carried out by external independent valuer M/s Impulse (Private) Limited. 

Trade and Other Payable 

Unclaimed Dividend

Joint Venture partner's 

advance 

As at June 30, 2025 the Company did not hold any financial instruments carried at fair value. Moreover,

investment property and operating fixed assets are measured at fair value.

Disposal / Transfer to subsidiary as 

consideration

Investment Property Carried at Fair 

Value
-                     -                  357,646,440 

Rupees 

Investment Property Carried at Fair 

Value
-                     -                 365,339,500    365,339,500        

As at June 30,2025

Total

Rupees 

As at June 30,2024

Total

Rupees 

June 30,2025 June 30,2024

Carrying 

Amount 
Fair value 

Carrying 

Amount 
Fair Value 

Additions during the year

 357,646,440 

Remeasurement recognized in OCI

Fair value at end of the year

The Company has revalued its freehold land, buildings on June 30, 2025 and plant and machinery on June

30, 2019 by independent valuer M/s Impulse (Private) Limited on the basis of market values of similar

properties. The fair value of free hold land, buildings and plant and machinery is a level 3 recurring fair value

measurement.

Rupees

Fair value at beginning of the year
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Interest rate used for determining fair value 

39.1

40 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR ALL SHARE ISLAMIC INDEX

41 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The fair value of non-derivate financial asset is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,

discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value is determined for disclosure

purposes.

Non-derivate financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future

principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government

yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. For instruments carried at amortized cost,

since majority of the interest bearing instruments are variable rate based instruments, there is no difference

in carrying amount and the fair value. Further, for fixed rate instruments, since there is no significant

difference in market rate and the rate of instrument and therefore most of the fixed rate instruments are of

short term in nature, fair value significantly approximates to carrying value.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted)  in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period during

which the change the occurred. However, there is no transfers between levels during the year.

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 2: input other than quoted prices included with in Level 1 that are observable for assets and liability

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market

confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on

capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders' equity. The

Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. There were no changes to the 

Company's approach to capital management during the year and the Company is not subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the Company to

classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used

in making the measurements. The table below analysis financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation

method. The different values have been defined as follows:

With reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21, 2016, issued by the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan relating to "All Shares Islamic Index", the Company does not have investment, bank

balance or other operations having Islamic mode therefore, individual items required by circular no. 14 of

2016 have not been disclosed.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting polices and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for

both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined of measurement and

/ or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

Non-derivate financial asset
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2025 2024

NOTE

     785,149,449         847,749,638 

Gearing ratio                      -                            -   

42 JOINT VENTURES

42.1

42.2

Rs. in million Investor

Khalifa Gul Nawaz Medical Complex, Bannu 402.36 50%

Durrani Public School, Bannu - Phase II 295 50%

Hawad / Nurar Bridges, Bannu 176.42 50%

43 INFORMATION ABOUT BUSINESS SEGMENTS

44 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2025 2024

Number of employees as at June 30, 19 17

Average number of employees during the year 18 17

45 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

45.1 MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOING CONCERN

For management purposes, the activities of the Company have been divided into own projects and joint

ventures. The Company operates in these business segments based on risk and return, organizational and

management structure and internal financial reporting systems. Operating results of joint ventures have not

been separately disclosed in these financial statements as these do not meet the minimum thresholds

prescribed by IFRS 8 (Operating Segments).

The Company's operations are confined to Pakistan in terms of customers; accordingly, the figures reported

in these financial statements relate to the Company's business segments relating to Pakistan.

The Company has incurred operational loss of Rupees 51.06 million during the year, primarily due to the non-

availability of profitable contracts/projects and the sale of Hyderabad land at a loss, which further increased

the overall deficit. Despite this, the Company successfully met its day-to-day working capital requirements

and administrative expenses through rental income from investment properties, while its recurring cash flows

were strengthened with the addition of a new restaurant in one of its buildings, generating incremental rental

income alongside existing tenants. Furthermore, liquidity was enhanced through the sale proceeds of the

Hyderabad land, notwithstanding the associated loss. In view of these developments and the management’s

focused efforts to re-profile operational activities and deploy available liquidity in a cost-efficient manner for

machinery and related projects, the management remains confident in the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern. The Company undertook following significant operational measures in order to generate

liquidity and profitable projects/ventures:

Rupees

Equity

The Joint Venture for execution of Bong Canal Bridge, Mangla with Sarwar Construction (Private) Limited

was in the ratio of 60:40 and the Company recognized its own share i.e. 60% of income and expenses in the

preceding years' financial statements.

As approved by the Board of Directors, the management had entered into Joint Venture arrangements for the

execution of the following Projects in prior years:

Project 

value

Profit sharing 

ratio

The capital structure of the Company is as follows:
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45.2 INVESTIGATION AGAINST EX-CFO

46 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

46.1 GENERAL

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                               CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                                      DIRECTOR

• On 01 September 2020 the company entered into a joint venture agreement for 15 years with Rajcon- a

construction and engineering company having expertise in pre-fabricated buildings and construction for

future projects. The Owner of Rajcon also appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the company to develop,

acquire and manage the future projects for the Company;

Based on in-house internal audit report the EX-CFO of the company during the period from 01 January 2018

to 29 December 2020 was involved in certain financial transactions amounting to Rs 26.804 million, which is

being investigated internally. Moreover, FIR has been lodged against him subsequent to June 30, 2021. The

transactions mainly done out of books and the impact of such investigation/FIR, if any, will be accounted for

in the period during which such case is completed.

• New Chief Operating officer, Project Director and Chief Financial Officer hired in place of ineffective

predecessors;

• The Company going to develop their own housing and commercial projects for which necessary approvals

are in process. 

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the

purposes of comparison and better presentation. However, no significant reclassification has been made.

These financial statements were authorized for issue on ____28 Oct 2025____ by the Board of Directors of

the Company.

Amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest of rupee, unless

otherwise stated.

• Renovation and upgradation of property to enhance their usability and value.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS 2025 2024

NON CURRENT ASSETS NOTE

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets 6 378,655,705          516,333,754      

Investment property 7 365,339,500          357,646,440      

Precommencement expenditure 8 5,831,832              6,196,321          

Work in Progress 18,281,809            3,366,911          

Long term security deposits 9 1,350,600              3,750,600          

Deferred taxation 22 -                         10,866,023        

769,459,445          898,160,049      

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 10 23,962,629            21,537,189        

Contract receivables 11 44,457,835            45,065,957        

Contract asset 12 65,049,779            65,049,779        

Loans and advances 13 19,103,298            18,145,255        

Other receivables 14 16,139,017            4,015,220          

Tax refunds due from Government 15 94,713,993            90,514,225        

Advance Tax - net 16 8,602,131              4,199,768          

Cash and bank balances 17 45,731,931            3,314,907          

317,760,613          251,842,300      

TOTAL ASSETS 1,087,220,058       1,150,002,349   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 18 282,662,310          282,662,310      

Capital reserves

Share premium reserve 15,380,330            15,380,330        

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 20 118,249,581          383,585,284      

133,629,911          398,965,614      

Revenue reserve-Accumulated profit 351,419,912          145,523,982      

Equity attributable to owners of the holding company 767,712,133          827,151,906      

Non-controlling interest 20 78,090,767            78,094,677        

845,802,900          905,246,583      

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred liability 21 4,642,963              6,402,590          

Deferred taxation 9,599,887              -                     

14,242,850            6,402,590          

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 23 193,153,061          203,472,646      

Unclaimed dividends 24 1,442,230              1,442,230          

Taxation 2,519,475              3,378,758          

Joint venture partner's advances 25 30,059,542            30,059,542        

227,174,308          238,353,176      

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,087,220,058       1,150,002,349   

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27 -                         -                     

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                             CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                            DIRECTOR

Rupees

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

NOTE

Revenue 27 93,152,023          43,496,084          

Contract expenditure/cost of good sold 28 (84,639,502)         (44,886,781)         

Gross profit/ (loss) 8,512,521            (1,390,697)           

Operating expenses

General and administrative expenses 29 (73,338,987)         (48,803,214)         

Other operating expenses 30 (38,799,125)         (945,444)              

(112,138,112)       (49,748,658)         

Other income 31 50,906,922          34,991,829          

Net operating profit/ (loss) (52,718,669)         (16,147,527)         

Finance Cost 32 (12,388)                (5,453)                  

33 7,693,060            3,441,280            

(Loss) before income taxes and minimum taxes (45,037,997)         (12,711,700)         

Minimum taxes 34 -                       (1,046,159)           

(Loss) before income taxes (45,037,997)         (13,757,858)         

Taxation 35 (21,634,867)         40,180,043          

(Loss) / Profit after taxation (66,672,864)         26,422,185          

Loss or Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the holding company (66,668,954)         29,162,661          

Non-controlling interests 20 (3,910)                  (2,740,476)           

(66,672,864)         26,422,185          

(Loss) / Earnings per share:

(Loss) / Earnings per share - basic and diluted 36  (2.36)  1.03 

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                         CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                            DIRECTOR

Fair value gain on investment property

Rupees
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

 Reserves 

 Revenue 

NOTE

Balance as at July 1, 2023 282,662,310  15,380,330     428,814,751 69,212,505    (304,847)            795,765,049  

Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2024

(Loss) for the year -                  -                  -                   29,162,661    -                     29,162,661    

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of deferred tax -                  -                  1,760,362        -                  -                     1,760,362      

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability -                  -                  -                   158,987          -                     158,987          

-                  -                  1,760,362        29,321,648    -                     31,082,010    

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment:

    - on account of incremental depreciation-net of deferred tax 19 -                  -                  (1,441,959)       1,441,959      -                     -                  

    - upon disposal of revalued property, plant and equipments -                  -                  (45,547,870)     45,547,870    -                     -                  

-                  -                  (46,989,829)     46,989,829    -                     -                  

Non-controlling interest:

Share of (loss) (30.01%) -                  -                  -                   -                  (2,740,476)         (2,740,476)     

Share of net assets -                  -                  -                   -                  81,140,000        81,140,000    

-                  -                  -                   -                  78,399,524        78,399,524    

Balance as at June 30, 2024 282,662,310  15,380,330     383,585,284 145,523,982  78,094,677        905,246,583  

Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2024

(Loss) for the year -                  -                  -                   (66,668,954)   -                     (66,668,954)   

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of deferred tax -                  -                  7,487,577        -                  -                     7,487,577      

Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability -                  -                  -                   (258,396)        -                     (258,396)        

-                  -                  7,487,577        (66,927,350)   -                     (59,439,773)   

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment:

    - on account of incremental depreciation-net of deferred tax 19 -                  -                  (1,884,181)       1,884,181      -                     -                  

    - upon revaluation adjustment for transfer of property, plant and equipment -                  -                  (270,939,099)   270,939,099  -                     -                  

-                  -                  (272,823,280)   272,823,280  -                     -                  

Non-controlling interest:

-                  -                  -                   -                  (3,910)                (3,910)            

Share of (loss) (30.01%) -                  -                  -                   -                  -                     -                  

Share of net assets -                  -                  -                   -                  (3,910)                (3,910)            

Balance as at June 30, 2025 282,662,310  15,380,330    118,249,581    351,419,912  78,090,767        845,802,900  

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

Share 

premium 

reserve

------------------------------------------------------Rupees-----------------------------------------------------------

Total
Issued, 

subscribed 

and paid-up 

capital

 Revaluation 

surplus on 

property, plant 

and 

equipment 

 Accumulated 

Profits 

Capital

Non-controlling 

interest

Share capital
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

NOTE

(Loss) / Profit after taxation (66,672,864)        26,422,185         

Other comprehensive income

Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 19 7,524,165           2,907,257           

Related deferred tax impact 19 (36,588)               12,106                

7,487,577           2,919,362           

(Loss)/gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability 21.4 (258,396)             158,987              

Total other comprehensive income for the year 7,229,181           3,078,349           

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (59,443,683)        29,500,534         

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:

Equity holders of the holding company (61,251,605)        32,045,081         

Non-controlling interests 1,807,922           (2,544,547)          

(59,443,683)        29,500,534         

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                              CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                          DIRECTOR

Rupees
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

NOTE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss) before working capital changes 38 (2,980,035)       (8,514,748)         

Changes in working capital:

Decrease / (increase) in current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools (2,425,440)       (5,350,742)         

Contract receivables 608,122           -                     

Loans and advances (958,043)          (1,902,148)         

Other receivables (12,123,797)     1,058,506          

Increase/(decrease)  in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (10,319,585)     26,493,584        

(25,218,743)     20,299,200        

Cash (used in) / generated from operations (28,198,778)     11,784,452        

Bank charges paid 32 (12,388)            (5,453)                

Income tax paid (10,666,959)     (4,702,225)         

Gratuity paid (2,160,181)       (1,210,272)         

(12,839,527)     (5,917,950)         

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (41,038,305)     5,866,502          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of fixed assets 6 (59,245,773)     (1,896,201)         

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 155,216,000    -                     

Work in progress (14,914,898)     (2,663,553)         

Long term investments -                   1,300,413          

Return / (Acquisition) in long term security deposits 2,400,000        (2,550,000)         

Net cash generated / (used in) investing activities 83,455,329       (5,809,341)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  42,417,024  57,161 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  3,314,907  3,257,746 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17  45,731,931  3,314,907 

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                               CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                          DIRECTOR

Rupees
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 The group consists of:

Holding Company

- Gammon Pakistan Limited

Subsidiary Company

- Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited

GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED

GAMMON PAKISTAN PRECAST (PRIVATE) LIMITED

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 2017 on November 16, 2021 as a

Private Company Limited by shares. The principal activity of the Company is to carry on the

business of all kind of cement, concrete precast products, its manufacturing/trade/installation on site

work and all kind of construction business. The registered office of the Company is situated at

Gammon House, 400/2 Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi. Gammon Pakistan Limited has 69.99%

ownership in the share capital of  Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited.

The Company was incorporated under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act,

2017) on August 12, 1947 as a Public Company Limited by shares. It's shares are quoted on

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (Formerly Karachi Stock Exchange Limited, Lahore Stock

Exchange Limited and Islamabad Stock Exchange Limited). The principal activity of the Company is

execution of civil construction works. The registered office of the Company is situated at Gammon

House, 400/2 Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi.

The Company is a subsidiary of Bibojee Services (Private) Limited (the holding company), a private

company incorporated in Pakistan.

Geographical locations and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Sr.No Location Address

1 Head office Gammon House, 400/2 Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi.

2 Rawalpindi Mouza Harka, Main Chakbeli Road, Tehsil & Distt. Rawalpindi.

Geographical locations and addresses of all business units are as follows:

Sr.No Location Address

1 Head office Gammon House, 400/2 Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi.

2 Rawalpindi Mouza Harka, Main Chakbeli Road, Tehsil & Distt. Rawalpindi.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved

accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and

reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of such International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified

under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the

Act) and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. However, provisions of

and the directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed where those

provisions are not consistent with the requirements of the IFRSs as notified under the Companies

Act, 2017.

During the current year ,Gammon Pakistan Limited has been placed in the “Non-Compliant

Segment” by PSX vide notice N-496 on May 14, 2025, under Regulation 5.11.1(a) for suspension of

core business operations. As a consequence the share registrar has been advised to freeze shares

of the sponsors, directors and senior management of the company. This does not effect

the general public.
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2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Key judgments and estimates

-

- Fair value of investment property - Note 5.2 & 7

-

- Obligation of defined benefit obligation - Note 5.16 & 23

- Estimate of revenue and cost - Note 5.17

- Impairment of financial instruments based upon expected credit loss model - Note 5.19

- Estimation of provisions - Note 5.21 

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - Note 5.22

-

3

3.1

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED

APPROVED STANDARDS

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year

and are relevant to the Group

There are certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became applicable

to the Group company on July 1, 2024. However, these amendments do not have any significant

impact on the Group Company’s financial statements.

Allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on contract receivables and loans and advances - Note 

5.6, 5.7, 12 & 15

Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax asset -

Note 5.15, 23 & 36

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention

except for certain fixed assets which have been stated at revalued amount, investment properties

which have been stated at fair value, recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value

and certain other items as disclosed in relevant accounting policies.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting

except for cash flow information.

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pak Rupees, which is the

functional and presentation currency of the Group.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. In

addition, it requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Company’s

accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where

assumptions and estimates are significant to the Consolidated financial statements, are

documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate primarily to:

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method and revalued amounts of property, plant

and equipment - Note 5.1 & 6
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a) IAS 1 : Classification of liabilities as current or non current 

Effective Date

b) January 1 , 2024

Effective Date

c) January 1 , 2024

Effective Date

January 1 , 2024

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of

the reporting period. As part of this amendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has

been removed and instead, the amendments requires that a right to defer settlement must have

substance and exist at the end of the reporting period. This right may be subject to a Company

complying with conditions (covenants) specified in a loan arrangement. At October 31, 2022, after

reconsidering certain aspects of the amendments, the IASB reconfirmed that only covenants with

which a Company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability

as current or non-current. Covenants with which the Company must comply after the reporting date

(i.e. future covenants) do not affect a liability’s classification at that date. However, when non-current 

liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies will now need to disclose information to help

users understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months after the

reporting date.

IFRS 16 : Sale and leaseback transaction

Amendments impact how a seller-lessee accounts for variable lease payments that arise in a sale-

and-leaseback transaction. On initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease payments

when it measures a lease liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After initial

recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for subsequent accounting of the

lease liability such that it recognises no gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains. The

amendments introduce a new accounting model for variable payments and will require seller-

lessees to reassess and potentially restate sale-and-leaseback transactions entered

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and 'IFRS 7 'Financial 

instruments disclosures' - Supplier Finance Arrangements

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of

Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures in May 2023, effective for annual

reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The amendments introduce additional

disclosure requirements and signposts within existing disclosure provisions that require entities to

provide qualitative and quantitative information about supplier finance arrangements, including their

nature, terms and conditions, the carrying amounts and presentation of related financial liabilities,

the range of payment due dates for payables under such arrangements, and a reconciliation of

changes in those liabilities during the reporting period. The purpose of these amendments is to

enhance transparency and enable users of financial statements to understand the effects of supplier

finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows, and liquidity risk exposure.

'The above mentioned amendments to published approved accounting standards did not have any

impact on the amounts recognized in prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the

current and future periods.
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3.2

Effective Date

a) January 1 , 2025

Effective Date

 January 1 , 2026

b)

Effective Date

c)  January 1 , 2027

The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective

for the financial year beginning on July 1, 2024 and have not been early adopted by the Group

Company: 

Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not 

yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group Company

IAS 21 : Lack of exchangeability 

Amendments to IAS 21 ‘The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ address situations

where a currency may lack exchangeability, often due to government-imposed controls. In such

cases, companies must estimate a spot exchange rate reflecting orderly transactions at the

measurement date. The amendments provide flexibility, allowing the use of observable rates without

adjustment or other estimation techniques, provided they meet the estimation objective. The

assessment considers factors like the availability of multiple rates, purpose, nature, and update

frequency. The amendments requires new disclosures, including the nature and financial impact of

non-exchangeability, the spot exchange rate used, the estimation process, and associated risks.

IFRS 7 : Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments Disclosure

IFRS 9 :  Financial Instruments

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ –

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments clarify the requirements for the timing of

recognition and derecognition of some financial assets and liabilities, with a new exception for some

financial liabilities settled through an electronic cash transfer system; clarify and add further

guidance for assessing whether a financial asset meets the solely payments of principal and interest

(SPPI) criterion; add new disclosures for certain instruments with contractual terms that can change

cash flows (such as some instruments with features linked to the achievement of environment,

social and governance (ESG targets); and make updates to the disclosures for equity instruments

designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

IFRS 18 : Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

The new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial statements, IFRS 18, focuses on

updates to the statement of profit or loss. It introduces key concepts such as the structure of the

statement of profit or loss, required disclosures for certain profit or loss performance measures

reported outside the financial statements (management-defined performance measures), and

enhanced principles on aggregation and disaggregation applicable to the primary financial

statements and notes.
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Effective Date

d)  July 1 , 2025

IFRS S2 :  Climate-Related Disclosures

3.4

4 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Subsidiary Company

There are other standards and amendments to published standards for accounting periods

beginning on or after 01 July 2024 that are not yet effective and are considered not to be relevant or

do not have any significant impact on the Group Company’s financial statements and are therefore

not detailed in these financial statements.

IFRS S1 : General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-

Related Financial Information

These standards include the core framework for the disclosure of material information about

sustainability-related risks, opportunities across an entity’s value chain and set out the requirements

for entities to disclose information about climate-related risks and opportunities.

IFRS S1 requires entities to disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and

opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose financial reporting in making

decisions relating to providing resources to the entity. The standards provide guidance on identifying

sustainability-related risks and opportunities, and the relevant disclosures to be made in respect of

those sustainability-related risks and opportunities.

IFRS S2 is a thematic standard that builds on the requirements of IFRS S1 and is focused on

climate-related disclosures. IFRS S2 requires an entity to identify and disclose climate-related risks

and opportunities that could affect the entity’s prospects over the short, medium and long term. In

addition, IFRS S2 requires entities to consider other industry-based metrics and seven cross-

industry metrics when disclosing qualitative and quantitative components on how the entity uses

metrics and targets to measure, monitor and manage the identified material climate-related risks

and opportunities. The cross-industry metrics include disclosures on greenhouse gas (‘GHG’)

emissions, transition risks, physical risks, climate-related opportunities, capital deployment, internal 
The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and

interpretations in future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than

in presentation / disclosures. There are a number of other standards, amendments and

interpretations to the published standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the

Company and, therefore, have not been presented here. 

Standards and amendments to approved published standards that are not yet effective and

not considered relevant to the Group Company

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Gammon Pakistan

Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiary company, Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private)

Limited ("the Subsidiary Company"), which is 69.99%

A subsidiary company is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and

operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are

considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. A subsidiary company is fully

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and is derecognized from

the date the control ceases. These consolidated financial statements include the Holding Company

and the Subsidiary Company in which the Holding Company directly or indirectly controls,

beneficially owns or holds more than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect

and appoint more than 50% of the directors of the Subsidiary Company.
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Changes in ownership interests in subsidiary without change of control

Transactions with non - controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as

equity transactions - that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The

difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the

carrying value of net assets of the Subsidiary Company is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on

disposals to non - controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

The Subsidiary has same reporting period as that of the Holding Company. The accounting policies

of subsidiary have been changed to confirm with accounting policies of the Group, wherever

needed.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the

acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the

acquisition date; any gain or losses arising from such measurement are recognized in consolidated

profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business

combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the

extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition is recorded as goodwill.

If the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the

difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, on the

acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit

from the combination. Goodwill is tested annually or whenever there is an indication of impairment

exists. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or

loss and is not reversed in future periods. 

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The

consideration transferred for the acquisition of the subsidiary company is the fair values of the

assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The

consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent

liabilities) assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the

acquisition date. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent considerations to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at the

acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is

deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or

as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified an equity is

not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary company is consolidated on a line by line

basis and the carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the

subsidiary's shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between the Group

companies, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts

reported by the Subsidiary have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Disposal of subsidiaries

5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

Initial recognition

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.

Subsequent measurement

Depreciation

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

Disposal

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost / revalued amount less accumulated

depreciation and any identified impairment loss, if any, except for freehold land, which is stated at

revalued amount. 

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set

out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account on straight-line basis on the cost or valuation of

all fixed assets from / to the date of acquisition / deletion, except for freehold land, to write-off ninety

percent of the value over the useful life of the assets. The remaining ten percent is written-off on

retirement is considered the residual value.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is

premeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognized in consolidated

statement of profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of

subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In

addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity

are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed off the related assets or liabilities. This

mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery is

recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as

“Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a

revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the

increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease

in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery is charged

to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on

property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation

reserve is not available for distribution to the Group’s shareholders. The surplus on revaluation

buildings and plant and machinery to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred

tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is

determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset

and is recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss. In case of the sale or retirement

of a revalued items, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the surplus on revaluation of

such item is transferred directly to the unappropriated profit. 
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Judgment and estimates

5.2 Investment properties

Recognition and measurement

Derecognition

Leases

5.3 Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

The assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are assessed at each reporting date to

determine whether there is any indication that the assets are impaired. If there is an indication of

possible impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and compared with its

carrying amount. 

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated

recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, unless the

relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a

revaluation decrease. 

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed on a regular basis. The

Group revalues its operating fixed assets on regular basis. The effect of any changes in estimate is

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and

losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the property is derecognized.

Investment properties represent the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property following a

change in its use and differences arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the

item immediately prior to transfer and its fair value is recognized in surplus on revaluation of

property, plant and equipment if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item related surplus on revaluation

of property, plant and equipment is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss arising in this manner

is recognized immediately in the income statement.

With regard to activities as a lessor, the Group has entered into commercial property leases on its

investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and

conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the

economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not

amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially

all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts

as operating leases. Rental income from investment property that is leased to a third party under an

operating lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease

term and is included in ‘other income’ under note 32.
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5.4 Investments at amortized cost

5.5 Stock of materials, stores, spares and loose tools

Measurement

Impairment

Judgments and estimates

Stock of materials, stores, spares and loose tools is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. 

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business

less all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to

make the sale.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying amount does not exceed

the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised. The Group recognises the reversal immediately in the

statement of profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with the

revaluation model. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation

increase.

These are carried at amortized cost less impairment loss, if any. Investments with fixed or

determinable payments and fixed maturity where management has both the positive intent and

ability to hold to maturity are classified at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gain

and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account when the investments are derecognized or

impaired, as well as through the amortization process.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that assets other

than stores and spares and stock in trade and deferred tax assets may be impaired. If such an

indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent

of impairment loss, if any. Where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, assets

are written down to the recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized as

expense in the profit and loss account, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any

impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average method and comprises direct materials, direct labour

costs and direct overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition. 

Cost of materials is determined using the first-in-first out method.

Cost of stores, spares and loose tools is determined using the weighted average method.

At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventory is impaired, the

carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell. The impairment loss

is recognised immediately in the cost of sales in the statement of profit or loss.

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and

selling goods of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market

conditions. A review is made periodically on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and

decline in net realizable value and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any

such decline.
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5.6 Contract receivables

Measurement

Judgments and estimates

5.7 Loans and advances

Judgments and estimates

5.8 Other receivables

5.9 Cash and cash equivalents 

5.10 Borrowings and borrowing costs

5.11 Trade and other payables

Contract receivables are measured at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful

receivable balance at the year-end.

A provision for impairment of contract receivables is established when there is objective evidence

that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the

receivables. The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Bad debts

are written-off in the statement of profit or loss on identification.

The allowance for expected credit of the Group is based on the assessment as per IFRS 9 and

management’s continuous evaluation of the recoverability of the outstanding contract receivables. In

assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, management considers, among other

factors, the creditworthiness, past collection history of each customer along with future indications

and macro-economic factors of the industry, economy and country.

These are stated at cost less provision for doubtful advances, if any.

A provision for impairment of advances is established when there is objective evidence that the

Group will not be able to adjust all advances according to the original terms of the advances. The

amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The allowance for expected credit of the Group is based on the assessment as per IFRS 9 and

management’s continuous evaluation of the reliability of the advances.

Other receivables are recognized at nominal amount which is fair value of the consideration to be

received in future.

Creditors relating to trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of

consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the

Group.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the financial statements at cost. For the purposes of cash

flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand and bank balances.

All borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are added to the cost of those assets,

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs

are charged to profit and loss in the period in which these are incurred.
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5.12 Dividend distribution

5.13 Joint venture partner's advances (including share of accrued profit)

5.14 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

5.15 Taxation

Current

Deferred

Levies

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any

amount paid/payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income is classified as levy in

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope

of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37.

The Group recognizes tax liabilities for pending tax assessments using estimates based on expert

opinion obtained from tax/legal advisors. Differences, if any, between the income tax provision and

the tax liability finally determined is recorded when such liability is so determined. 

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income on current rates of taxation after taking

into account the rebates and tax credits available, if any, or 1.25% of turnover and corporate tax as

per section 113c, whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.

Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it

relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity (if any), in which

case the tax amounts are recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

Profit / loss on advances obtained from a joint venture partner is recognized on 'accrual basis' in

accordance with the agreed percentage. 

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognized in

the period in which these are approved.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. 

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which

the dividends are approved by the Group’s shareholders.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary

differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are

generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated

at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates

that have been enacted.
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Judgment and estimates

Off-setting

5.16 Defined benefit plan (gratuity)

5.17 Revenue recognition

Contract revenue and cost

5.18 Foreign currency transactions

In determining the liability for long-service payments management must make an estimate of salary

increases over the following five years, the discount rate to calculate present value over next five

years, and the number of employees expected to leave before they receive the benefits. 

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and corresponding

provision for tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax

determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax

authority.

The Group measures defined benefit liabilities (assets) at the present value of its obligation under

defined benefit plan at the reporting date minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets out

of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The obligation under defined benefit plan is

determined using the projected unit credit method. 

Where the outcome of the construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is

recognized to the extent of the contract costs incurred that probably will be recoverable. Contract

costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the period in which

they occur. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

Revenue is recognized overtime as per IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" on the

basis of input method on the execution of contract activities where the outcome of the construction

contract can be estimated reliably as measured by the proportion that contract work performed to

date bears to the estimated total contract work. Variable consideration due to contract work, claims

and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

-Revenue from rental income is recognized on 'accrual basis'. 

-Interest income is also recognized on 'accrual basis'.

Input method is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting period to the current estimates of

total contract revenue and total contract costs. Any change in these estimates will affect the contract

revenue and contract costs accordingly. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates

of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. All exchange

differences are charged to profit and loss account.
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5.19 Financial Instruments

5.19.1 Financial assets

Amortized cost

-

-

Impairment

5.19.2 Financial liabilities

5.19.3 Recognition and measurement 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized cost

are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross

carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the

Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion

thereof. 

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the

consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are

subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular

measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with

each item. 

The Group recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets

measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Group measures loss allowance at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or

loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The classification

depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All the financial assets of the Group as at

statement of financial position date are carried at amortized cost.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not

designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets

measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Group measures loss allowance at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs. 
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5.19.4 Derecognition

5.20 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

5.21 Provisions

5.22 Contingent liabilities

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Group loses control of the contractual right that

comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are extinguished

i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,

regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years

in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to

take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognised provision is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognised as part of

cost of an asset.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past

events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or the Group has a present

legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of

the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are

reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a

reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties

surrounding the obligation. 

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be required to

settle the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of

the discount is recognised as finance cost in the statement of profit or loss. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that

reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements

only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Group

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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5.23 Contract asset / liability

5.24 Segment reporting

5.25 Joint ventures and joint operations.

5.26 Earnings per share

5.27 Related party transactions

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at

arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party

transactions using valuation modes as admissible.

The Group recognizes contract asset against the cost incurred and estimated earning which is in

excess of the amount billed to the customer to date. The Group recognizes the contract liability

against the amount billed to the customer which is in excess of the cost incurred and estimated

earning of the contract to date.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it

may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions

with any of the Group’s other components. The Group has only one reportable segment. 

The Group presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated

by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Group's share in transactions and balances related to joint operations, in which the Group has

a working interest, are combined on a line by line basis with similar items in the Group's

consolidated financial statements. While equity method accounting is used for joint ventures.
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6 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

Year ended June 30, 2025

Net carrying value basis

Opening book value 403,904,400      22,478,552           88,126,623           620,903                771,810                322,388             -                     109,078               516,333,754       

Revaluation surplus/(deficit) 6,585,600          938,565                -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       7,524,165           

Additions -                     35,449,494           10,550,979           198,800                712,000                9,847,500          2,487,000          -                       59,245,773         

Transfers -                     -                        -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      

Deletions - NBV (191,914,000)     (1,000,000)            (180,000)               -                        (8,000)                   -                     -                     -                       (193,102,000)      

Depreciation charge -                     (590,448)               (10,182,265)          (199,351)               (224,155)               (52,905)              (69,083)              (27,780)                (11,345,987)        

Closing net book value 218,576,000      57,276,163           88,315,337           620,352                1,251,655             10,116,983        2,417,917          81,298                 378,655,705       

Gross carrying value basis

Cost/revalued amount 218,576,000      58,081,614           110,895,702         2,297,887             2,638,354             13,361,279        2,487,000          418,200               408,756,036       

Deletions -                     (13,750)                 -                        -                        (8,000)                   -                     -                     -                       (21,750)               

Revaluation adjustments -                     (245,569)               -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       (245,569)             

218,576,000      57,822,296           110,895,702         2,297,887             2,630,354             13,361,279        2,487,000          418,200               408,488,718       

Accumulated depreciation -                     (805,452)               (22,580,365)          (1,677,535)            (1,378,699)            (3,244,296)         (69,083)              (336,902)              (30,092,331)        

Deletions -                     13,750                  -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       13,750                

Revaluation adjustments -                     245,569                -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       245,569              

-                     (546,133)               (22,580,365)          (1,677,535)            (1,378,699)            (3,244,296)         (69,083)              (336,902)              (29,833,013)        

218,576,000      57,276,163           88,315,337           620,352                1,251,655             10,116,983        2,417,917          81,298                 378,655,705       

Year ended June 30, 2024

Net carrying value basis

Opening book value 282,082,400      17,348,836           11,474,197           836,568                755,307                274,486             -                     140,058               312,911,852       

Revaluation surplus/(deficit) 196,000             1,552,256             -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       1,748,256           

Additions -                     -                        1,463,800             -                        223,700                208,701             -                     -                       1,896,201           

Transfers 121,626,000      4,066,125             81,140,000           -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       206,832,125       

Deletions - NBV -                     -                        -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       -                      

Depreciation charge -                     (488,665)               (5,951,374)            (215,665)               (207,197)               (160,799)            -                     (30,980)                (7,054,680)          

Closing net book value 403,904,400      22,478,552           88,126,623           620,903                771,810                322,388             -                     109,078               516,333,754       

Gross carrying value basis

Cost/revalued amount 403,904,400      22,967,217           100,524,723         2,099,087             1,926,354             3,513,779          -                     418,200               535,353,760       

Deletions -                     (66,125)                 -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       (66,125)               

Revaluation adjustments -                     (207,536)               -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       (207,536)             

403,904,400      22,693,556           100,524,723         2,099,087             1,926,354             3,513,779          -                     418,200               535,080,099       

Accumulated depreciation -                     (488,665)               (12,398,100)          (1,478,184)            (1,154,544)            (3,191,391)         -                     (309,122)              (19,020,006)        

Deletions -                     66,125                  -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       66,125                

Revaluation adjustments -                     207,536                -                        -                        -                        -                     -                     -                       207,536              

-                     (215,004)               (12,398,100)          (1,478,184)            (1,154,544)            (3,191,391)         -                     (309,122)              (18,746,345)        

403,904,400      22,478,552           88,126,623           620,903                771,810                322,388             -                     109,078               516,333,754       

Depreciation rate % per Annum - 2.5 to 2.8 6 to 30 9 to 18 10 to 15 9 to 18 9 to 18 6 to 24

6.1

6.2 Depreciation has been allocated as follows: 2025 2024

NOTE

Contract expenditure 28 10,210,045           5,982,354             

General and administrative expenses 29 1,135,942             1,072,326             

11,345,987           7,054,680             

Description
Freehold land

Buildings on 

freehold land

Plant and 

machinery

Furniture and 

fixtures

Computers and 

accessories

Solar System 

with Grid

Construction 

equipments
Total

Rupees

Motor vehicles, 

cycles and 

boats

Freehold land and building on freehold land of the Company is located at Mouza Chur Harpal, Near Chur Chowk, Main Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi Cantt measuring 5.1 Kanal Details of workshop and

residential buildings of the company constructed on this land are as follows:

LOCATION PARTICULAR COVERED AREA (In Sq. Ft)

Rupees

Mouza Chur Harpal, Near Chur Chowk, Main Peshawar Road, 

Rawalpindi Cantt.
Gammon house Head office 4,004                                                
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6.3

6.4

Independent valuer Revaluation dates

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30,2025

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30,2024

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30,2023

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30,2022

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2021

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2020

M/s Impulse (Private) Limited June 30, 2019

6.5

6.6

2025

Rupees

Freehold land               120,988 

Buildings on freehold land          38,382,066 

Plant and machinery            8,623,263 

Furniture and fixture            1,161,988 

Computers and accessories            1,282,307 

Motor vehicles, cycles and boats          10,119,655 

Construction equipment               273,403 

2025 2024

7 NOTE

Carrying amount as at June 30,

Gammon House - land and building 7.3 365,339,500       357,646,440       

7.1 The movement in this account is as follows:

Opening balance 357,646,440       479,831,160       

7.2 -                      (121,626,000)     

7.4 

Carrying amount as at June 30 365,339,500       357,646,440       

7.2

7.3

7.4

This represents part of Gammon House which is held to earn rentals and for capital appreciation

and shown under the head "Investment property". The Company has adopted fair value model for

valuation.

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not available for

distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

This represents surplus on book values resulted from revaluation of operating fixed assets based

on fair value / market value estimated by independent valuers adjusted only by surplus realized on

disposal of revalued assets and incremental depreciation arising out of revaluation. Revaluation of

land and buildings was based upon fair market value and valuation for other operating assets was

conducted during 2019 which was based upon depreciated replacement costs to reflect the residual

service potential of the assets taking account of age, condition and obsolescence. Details of

revaluation are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

In the previous year, the Company had transferred barren land at Chak Beli, measuring 209.70

Kanals, to Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited (GPPL) against the issuance of 12,162,600

shares of Rs. 10 each as non-cash consideration, valued at Rs. 121.63 million based on an

independent revaluation.

Rupees

Net fair value gain on revaluation shown in 

profit and loss account
7,693,060           

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets would

have been as follows:

The forced sale value of the revalued freehold land and buildings at date of statement of financial

position has been assessed at Rs. 88,896,736/-.

In 2013, management purchased and installed billboards at Gammon House, which were treated as

additions to investment property.

Less: Transfer during the year

(558,720)            

As of June 30, 2025, the company revalued all of its investment properties through an independent

valuer, Impulse (Private) Limited. The revaluation resulted in a net fair value gain of Rs. 7,693,060

(2024: net fair value loss of Rs. 558,720).
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2025 2024

NOTE

8 PRE-COMMENCEMENT EXPENDITURES

Cost Incurred 7,289,790           7,289,790           

7,289,790           7,289,790           

Less: Accumulated Amortization (1,457,959)          (1,093,469)         

5,831,832           6,196,321           

8.1

2025 2024

NOTE

9 LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Tender money deposit 150,000              2,550,000           

Others security deposits 1,200,600           1,200,600           

1,350,600           3,750,600           

9.1

10 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Consumable materials  176,655  176,655 

Stocks and Stores 10.1 & 10.2  22,996,339  20,570,898 

Spares  569,019  569,019 

Loose tools  20,575  20,575 

Other stocks  200,042  200,042 

 23,962,629  21,537,189 

10.1 Balance as at June 30 33,997,195         31,571,754         

Impairment - obsolete and slow moving item (11,000,856)        (11,000,856)       

22,996,339         20,570,898         

10.2

2025 2024

NOTE

11 CONTRACT RECEIVABLES

Owned

Unsecured - considered good

Against billings:

- completed contracts  76,107,566  76,107,565 

Provision for expected credit loss 11.1  (73,512,276)  (73,512,276)

 2,595,290  2,595,289 

Against retention money:

- completed contracts  79,929,396  80,537,519 

Provision for expected credit loss 11.1  (38,066,851)  (38,066,851)

 41,862,545  42,470,668 

Rupees

Forced sale value of the investment property at date of statement of financial position is assessed

at Rs 310,538,264 / -.

Rupees

Rupees

There are no non-cancellable fixed rate operating leases over the Company’s investment property,

land and buildings. 

It represents pre-commencement expenditures of subsidiary company that is amortized over the

period of twenty years using straight line method.

It represent deposits against receipt of non-financial services. These are carried at nominal value as

effect by amortization is not material in respect of these financial statements.

As of June 30, 2025, the company revalued all of its investment properties through an independent

valuer, Impulse (Private) Limited. The revaluation resulted in a net fair value gain of Rs. 7,693,060

(2024: net fair value loss of Rs. 558,720).

Stocks and Stores also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not

distinguishable at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumption resulting in

capital expenditure are capitalized in cost of respective assets.
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2025 2024

NOTE

Joint venture:

- against billings  17,054,553  17,054,553 

- against retention money  12,936,380  12,936,380 

 29,990,933  29,990,933 

Provision for expected credit loss 11.1  (29,990,933)  (29,990,933)

-                      -                     

44,457,835 45,065,957

11.1

2025 2024

NOTE

Opening balance 141,570,060       141,570,060       

Charge during the year -                      -                     

141,570,060       141,570,060       

12

Under the following captions:

Contract asset on incomplete projects 65,049,779         65,049,779         

12.1 This comprises as follows:

Cost incurred on incomplete projects 1,875,995,062    1,875,995,062    

Estimated earnings 204,237,252       204,237,252       

2,080,232,314    2,080,232,314    

Billings to date  (2,015,182,535) (2,015,182,535)  

65,049,779         65,049,779         

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured - considered good

To employees / project managers for expenses 5,854,834           6,789,177           

To suppliers 10,258,544         8,400,358           

To labour incharge 34,200                -                     

To sub - contractors 2,955,720           2,955,720           

19,103,298         18,145,255         

Doubtful advances 26,387,232         26,387,232         

45,490,530         44,532,487         

Provision for expected credit loss 13.1 (26,387,232)        (26,387,232)       

19,103,298         18,145,255         

13.1

2025 2024

NOTE

Opening balance 26,387,233         26,387,233         

Reversed/charged during the year -                      -                     

26,387,233         26,387,233         

Management, in the previous years, carried out an exercise to identify long outstanding receivable

balances comprising of advances to staff and suppliers, which are not likely to be received due to

various reasons. Similarly during the year, management carried out the assessment and identified

provision for expected credit losses as follows:

Rupees

Rupees

Management, in the prior years, carried out an exercise to identify long outstanding receivable

balances comprising of progress billings and retention money which are not likely to be received due

to various reasons. Similarly, during the year, management carried out the ECL assessment and

identified provision for expected credit loss as follows:

CONTRACT ASSET

Rupees
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14 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Unsecured:

- Considered good

Other receivables 14.1 16,139,017         4,015,220           

14.1

2025 2024

Janana De Malucho Textile Limited 146,410              146,410              

Ghandhara Industry Limited 563,680              -                     

Bannu Woolen Mills Limited 109,508              163,468              

Kisa Khani kabab (Pvt) Limited 1,200,000           -                     

2,019,598           309,878              

14.2 Aging of receivable from related parties:

1-90 days 2,019,598           309,878              

90-180 days -                      -                     

Over 180 days -                      -                     

2,019,598           309,878              

14.3

15 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT 

Balance as at July 01, 90,514,225         85,272,052         

Advance income tax 16 4,199,768           5,242,173           

94,713,993         90,514,225         

16 TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 01, 4,199,768           5,242,173           

Transferred to tax refunds due from Government (4,199,768)          (5,242,173)         

-                      -                     

Provision for taxation -                      (502,458)            

Advance income tax 8,602,131           4,702,226           

8,602,131           4,199,768           

2025 2024

NOTE

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 2,184,334           611,725              

Cash at bank: local currency

- Current accounts 17.1 42,647,649         1,803,234           

- Savings accounts 17.2 10,505                10,505                

- Deposit accounts 17.3 889,443              889,443              

43,547,597         2,703,182           

45,731,931         3,314,907           

17.1

17.2

It include Rupees 7,995/- (2024: RS. 7,995/-) attached under the instructions of Sindh Revenue

Board in prior years against the order no 72 in 2018 for the departmental recovery of Rupees 51.696

million. On December 23, 2020 the Commissioner Appeals order in favour of the company and the

company is under process to detach these bank accounts.

The PLS accounts remained dormant during the year. Consequently, no profit was accrued or

credited to these accounts, and their balances remained unchanged from those reported in the

previous year (2024: profit rates ranged from 19.5% to 21%).

Maximum balance due from related party at end of any month during the year is Rs. 1,270,532

(2024: Rs. 2,030,117).

This amount includes rental income receivable from related parties as follows:

Rupees

Rupees
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17.3

18 SHARE CAPITAL

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2025 2024

NOTE2025 2024

226,273,200       226,273,200       

25,628,450         25,628,450         

30,760,660         30,760,660         

        282,662,310        282,662,310 

18.1

Bibojee Services (Private) Limited - Parent of Holding Company

18.2  203,690,560  203,690,560 

Directors and their spouses / minor children

 958,550  958,550 

 204,649,110  204,649,110 

18.2

18.3

18.4 Authorized share capital:

19

2025 2024

NOTE

Balance brought forward 389,603,139       436,777,682       

Add: Revaluations during the year 7,524,165           1,748,257           

Less:

270,939,099       45,547,870         

273,765,110       48,922,800         

123,362,194       389,603,139       

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Revaluation adjustment due to transfer of

asset

Related deferred tax liability during the year

transferred to profit and loss account

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is restated and now presented as a

separate capital reserve in the financial statements.

1,884,181           

941,830              

 2,562,845 Issued as fully paid bonus

shares

 28,266,231 

This includes shares held by related parties as follows:

This represents 30,000,000 (2024: 30,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs.

300,000,000 (2024: Rs. 300,000,000).

95,855 (2024: 95,855) ordinary shares of Rs 10 each

All ordinary shareholders have same rights regarding voting, board selection, right of first refusal

and block voting.

Number of ordinary

Transferred to equity in respect of incremental

depreciation charged during the year - net of

deferred tax

1,932,971           

Fully paid in cash

 shares of Rs.10/- each Rupees

Issued against conversion 

of loans
 3,076,066 

 28,266,231 

 22,627,320 

 2,562,845 

 3,076,066 

Rupees

The parent company Bibojee Services (Private) Limited held 72.06% shares (2024: 72.06% shares)

in Gammon Pakistan Limited as at June 30, 2025.

20,369,056 (2024: 20,369,056) ordinary 

shares of Rs 10 each

The entire balance as at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024 is under a bank's lien against guarantees

issued by the bank.

 22,627,320 

1,441,959           

110



GAMMON PAKISTAN LIMITED

Less: Related deferred tax effect :

Opening balance - as previously reported 6,017,855           7,962,931           

Revaluation during the year 36,588                (12,106)              

Revaluation adjustment due to transfer of asset (172,235)             (1,344,001)         

5,112,613           6,017,855           

118,249,581       383,585,284       

20 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

20.1 Summary of non-controlling interest

Opening balance 78,094,677         (304,847)            

Investment during the year -                      81,140,000         

(Loss) for the year (3,910)                 (2,740,476)         

78,090,767         78,094,677         

21 DEFERRED LIABILITY

21.1 Gratuity

The Holding Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:

21.2

2025 2024

NOTE

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 1,007,203           606,649              

Benefits due but not paid during the year 3,635,760           5,795,941           

            4,642,963            6,402,590 

21.3 Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability

Present value of defined benefit obligations 606,649              1,493,221           

Benefits due but not paid as at June 30 5,795,941           6,059,213           

Service cost 52,677                53,710                

Interest on defined benefit obligations 89,481                165,705              

Benefits paid during the year (2,160,181)          (1,210,272)         

(3,635,760)          (5,795,941)         

Actuarial (gain) 258,396              (158,987)            

            1,007,203               606,649 

(769,595)             

Benefit due but not paid at the year end

The Holding company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme. The scheme provides for terminal

benefits for all its permanent employees whose period of service exceeds six months. Employees

are entitled to gratuity on the basis of one gross salary for each completed one year of service

after the minimum qualifying period. Annual charge is based on actuarial valuation carried out as

at June 30, 2025 using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Rupees

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are determined as

follows:

Incremental depreciation charged during the

year transferred to profit and loss account
(588,969)            

Final salary risk: The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than

what the Holding Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the

benefit amount would also increase proportionately.
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21.4

(517)                    
(430)                   

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to experience adjustment 258,913              (158,557)            

258,396              (158,987)            

21.5

Current service costs 52,677                53,710                

Interest cost 89,481                165,705              

               142,158 219,415              

21.6

Opening defined benefit obligation  6,402,590  7,552,434 

Service cost 52,677                53,710                

Interest cost 89,481                165,705              

Actuarial (gains) / losses 258,396              (158,987)            

Benefits paid (2,160,181)          (1,210,272)         

4,642,963           6,402,590           

21.7

Discount rate as at June 30, 2025 11.75%

Future salary increases                         10.75%

Proportion of employees opting for early retirement                                           

Mortality rate SLIC (2001-5) Mortality table

Average expected remaining working lifetime of members 3 Years

Average duration of liability 3 Years

21.8 Comparison of five years

2025 2024 2023 2022

21.9

Sensitivity analysis

The impact of 1% change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Discount rate 975,832              1,037,710           

Salary increase 1,039,444           975,735              

Present value of

defined benefit

obligation 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit

obligation are as follows:

Actuarial (gain) / loss due to Change in 

financial assumptions

Remeasurement (gain) / loss on defined obligation due to:

2021

 0.506% to 14.344%

 4,319,738  1,493,221 

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustment on obligation

for the current and preceding four years is as follows: 

 1,007,203  3,030,550 

Rupees 

2025

Rupees

 606,649 

21.10

Principal actuarial assumptions (financial and demographic) at the end of the reporting

period (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

The amounts recognised in the statement

of profit or loss:

21.11

1 % increase in 

assumption 

1 % decrease  in 

assumption 

There are no plan assets, therefore, disclosure in respect to plan assets required as per IAS-19

"Employee Benefits" has not been made in these financial statements. 

The charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2026 is estimated to be

Rs. 176,686.

Remeasurement chargeable to statement of other

comprehensive income
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Expected future payments

Within one year 988,874              

More than one year but less than five years 3,734,410           

Above five years -                     

4,723,284           

22 DEFERRED TAXATION

2025 2024

NOTE

Deferred tax 22.1 9,599,887           (10,866,023)       

Tax rate 29% 29%

22.1 Deferred tax Asset-net

22.1.1 Analysis of change in deferred tax

The gross movement in the deferred tax Assets during the year is as follows:

2025 2024

NOTE

Opening balance (10,866,023)        29,326,126         

Charged to statement of profit or loss                 35 20,429,322         (40,180,043)       

Charged to other comprehensive income                 19 36,588                (12,106)              

9,599,887           (10,866,023)       

22.1.2 Net deferred tax liability is comprised of as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated tax depreciation allowed 94,172,294         66,399,356         

Surplus on revaluation of PPE 5,112,611           6,017,853           

Gratuity payable -                      -                     

99,284,905         72,417,209         

Deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful receivables (41,055,317)        (41,055,317)       

Provision for doubtful loan and advances (7,652,297)          (7,652,297)         

Deferred tax asset on brought forward losses (29,445,420)        (22,533,342)       

Provision for overseas loan (10,185,525)        (10,185,525)       

Gratuity payable (1,346,459)          (1,856,751)         

(89,685,018)        (83,283,232)       

9,599,887           (10,866,023)       

22.2 Deferred tax asset of Rs. 29,445,420 due to brought forward losses has been recognized in the

current financial statements, as in the opinion of the management there is certainty regarding

realisability of the amount (2024: Rs. 22,533,342)

Rupees

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction,

and the law allows net settlement.

Rupees

21.12
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2025 2024

NOTE

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Directors current accounts 23.1 38,077,114         38,077,114         

Sundry creditors 39,140,557         34,727,995         

Advance rent 2,539,864           2,362,577           

Due to sub-contractors 16,999,998         24,543,700         

Accrued expenses 48,979,082         48,014,989         

Due to employees and others 23.2 6,444,973           9,008,909           

Advance from customers 1,005,677           8,122,008           

Taxes payable 3,222,579           1,727,895           

Joint venture partners' share of profit  1,620,715  1,620,715 

Other provisions 23.3 35,122,500         35,122,500         

Workers welfare fund payable 1                         144,244              

        193,153,061        203,472,646 

23.1

23.2

23.3

2025 2024

NOTE

24 UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

 1,442,230  1,442,230 

These represent provisions made for the potential liability, in respect of borrowings of Saudi Riyals

2.50 million and Saudi Riyals 5 million during the year 1986 for the Saudi Operations of the

Company, that the Company may have to incur as a result of settlement of overseas dues of

National Bank of Pakistan in accordance with the Incentive Scheme under the State Bank of

Pakistan's Circular No.19 of 05 June,1997 (For further detail please refer note 26.2(a) of these

financial statements).

Rupees

The SECP has also directed the Company's Chief Executive to distribute the amount of Rs. 9.153

million to members of the provident fund trust including the employees / directors / ex-directors of

the Company at the time of closure of provident fund trust in the year 1987 as per their entitlement

and to submit an Auditors' certificate confirming that all outstanding money of the fund has been

paid to the members in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the repealed Ordinance.

The Company opened a separate bank account and transferred the entire amount into it.

Furthermore, an amount of  Rs. 7.589 million were paid to members up to December 31, 2019.

This balance includes amounts aggregating Rs. 1.563 million (2024: Rs. 1.563 million) payable in

respect of the loans obtained from the Company's Employees' Provident Fund (the Fund) during the

period from 1995 to 1999. The SECP, during May 2008, had issued show-cause notices to some of

the existing directors as well as ex-directors under various sections of the repealed Companies

Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The SECP, vide its three orders dated 25 June, 2009, had

imposed penalties aggregating Rs. 1.005 million under various sections of the Ordinance on some

of the existing directors and ex-directors in their personal capacity. 

Rupees

This includes advances paid by directors in order to meet day to day expenses from Chairman

Gen.(Rtd) Mr. Ali kuli khan and Director Khalid Kuli Khan amounting to Rs. 22,553,800/- (2024:

Rs.22,553,800) and Rs. 4,023,314/- ( 2024: Rs. 4,023,314) respectively which are interest free and

reimbursable on demand.

Unclaimed dividend
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25 JOINT VENTURE PARTNER'S ADVANCES

26 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

26.1 Contingent assets

26.2 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

(c )

These advance have been obtained under various Joint Venture agreements to finance the ongoing

projects. The joint venture partner is entitled to share 50% of the projects' profit financed out of

these advances.

In the ordinary course of business various parties have filed legal cases against the Company, which

have not been admitted as liabilities; accordingly, no provision has been considered necessary

against these claims till their final outcome. The legal advisor of the Company is of the opinion that

these cases are expected to be decided in favour of the Company and therefore no provision has

been made in these financial statements for any liability that may arise consequent upon the result of 

above law suits.

Proceedings under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 were initiated and

completed against the company for the tax year 2016 and 2018 by determining tax payable of

Rupees 1,677,422/- and Rupees 16,764,436/- respectively. The cases have been heard by the

Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) whose decision is awaited. Legal counsel of the company

is confident of a favourable decision in due course of time.

The National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) vide its letter number NBP/CORP/2022/107 has categorically

confirmed that the company does not owe any amount in respect of overseas dues of NBP and the

e-CIB portal of the State Bank of Pakistan has also not reported any overdue amount. Therefore,

outcome of the case pending before the Sindh High Court since 2000 cannot be determined at this

stage. However the legal advisor is confident of a favourable outcome.

The Holding Company had lodged a claim with National Highway Authority amounting Rs. 201.177

million (2024: Rs. 201.177 million) against M/s Bayinder for recovery of losses suffered by the

Company attributable to the cessation of work at Islamabad - Peshawar Motorway Project.

In view of the above and since the company has made provision for the contingent liability (note 23.2

above) in the financial statements in accordance with the Incentive Scheme under the State Bank of

Pakistan's Circular No. 19 of 05 June, 1997, the management is of the opinion that there is no

further requirement for any provision on this account as no adverse effect is expected. The same

has been endorsed by the Company's Board of Directors (BOD) and the legal advisor in his opinion.

Furthermore, the BOD has agreed to settle any liability that may arise consequent upon the outcome

of the above matter.

Regarding tax year 2015 Best judgment assessment was made against the company under section

121 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 determining tax chargeable at Rupees 46,282,156/- and tax

payable of Rupees. 22,636,470/- The Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who upheld the

assessment order of Deputy Commission Inland Revenue. Later on, the Appellate Tribunal Inland

Revenue remanded back the case to the assessing officers which is yet to set for hearing. Legal

counsel of the company is confident of a favourable decision in due course of time.

Punjab Revenue Authority completed its proceedings against the company for nonpayment of

Rupees 68,290,380/- as provincial tax during the tax periods from June 2013 to March 2018. The

case is pending before the Appellate Tribunal Punjab Revenue Authority. Legal counsel of the

company is confident of a favourable decision in due course of time.
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26.3 Commitments

The Group's commitments as at balance sheet date are as follows: 

(a)

(b) There were no commitments for capital expenditures as at the balance sheet date (2024: Nil).

2025 2024

NOTE

27 REVENUE

Sale 93,152,023         43,496,084         

2025 2024

NOTE

28 CONTRACT EXPENDITURE/COST OF GOOD SOLD

Materials consumed 51,857,080         25,248,117         

Salaries and wages 10,635,459         1,740,731           

Maintenance and hiring of plants 2,172,237           1,998,332           

Entertainment 2,794,007           2,232,213           

Cartage, traveling and conveyance 689,930              257,140              

Site auxiliary works and temporary hutting 938,714              1,037,986           

Electricity 1,073,017           1,600,619           

Depreciation 6.2 10,590,924         6,220,783           

Petrol, oil and lubricants 3,214,369           3,332,066           

Sundry expenses 673,766              1,218,795           

84,639,502         44,886,781         

29 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 20,167,405         26,715,669         

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 142,158              219,415              

Repair and maintenance 4,297,985           1,682,268           

Rent, rates and taxes 12,153,974         4,940,513           

Telephone and fax 597,648              290,952              

Advertisement and publicity 258,280              354,055              

Petrol, oil and lubricants 31,000                346,250              

Legal and professional charges 2,282,400           4,046,530           

Power and electricity 1,368,804           1,068,002           

Travelling and conveyance 3,050,757           2,103,117           

Hiring of Machinery 2,638,400           1,810,860           

Works in view -                      100,950              

Fee and subscription 873,162              1,008,191           

Precommmencement expenditure 364,490              364,490              

Depreciation 6.2 755,063              833,897              

Other sundry expenses 24,357,461         2,918,056           

73,338,987         48,803,214         

30 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditor remuneration 30.1 & 30.2 885,125              885,125              

Loss on sale of operating fixed assets 37,914,000         -                     

Worker welfare fund -                       60,319 

38,799,125         945,444              

Rupees

Guarantees issued by a commercial bank and insurance companies in respect of financial and

operational obligations of the Company to various institutions and corporate bodies, aggregate Rs.

50.062 million (2024: Rs. 50.062 million).

Rupees
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30.1 Auditor remuneration

Gammon Pakistan Limited

Statutory audit 498,750              498,750              

Half yearly review 165,375              165,375              

Fee for other certification 21,000                21,000                

685,125              685,125              

30.2 Gammon Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited

Statutory audit 192,500              192,500              

Out of pocket expenses 7,500                  7,500                  

200,000              200,000              

2025 2024

31 OTHER INCOME NOTE

Income from financial assets:

Profit on deposit and PLS accounts -                      1,305                  

Gain realized on maturity of defense saving certificate -                      410,513              

Income from non-financial assets:

Rental income on investment property 37,512,405         33,241,083         

8,000                  66,125                

Gain on sale of obsolete fixed assets/stores & spares 1,400,360           955,850              

Misc. Income 11,156,054         316,953              

50,076,819         34,991,829         

32 FINANCE COST 

Bank charges  12,388  5,453 

33 FAIR VALUE GAIN ON INVESTMENT PROPERTY

T

2025 2024

NOTE

34 MINIMUM TAXES

Minimum Taxes 34.1 -                      1,046,159           

34.1

35 TAXATION

Current year -                      -                     

Deferred tax 20,429,322         (40,180,043)       

20,429,322         (40,180,043)       

35.1 No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these consolidated financial statements for the

year ended June 30, 2025 as the income of the Group is subject to separate taxation regime under

the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets and investment 

property

Rupees

This represents minimum tax under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance and is shown separately 

as per the amendments in the applicable standard as disclosed in the policy note 5.15.

The company, as of June 30, 2025, had revalued all of its investment property. The revaluation

exercise was carried out by Impulse (Private) Limited, and the revaluation resulted in a net fair

value gain amounting to Rs. 7,693,060 (2024: net fair value loss of Rs. 558,720). During the

previous year, the Company also transferred investment property to its subsidiary, Gammon

Pakistan Precast (Private) Limited, against the issuance of shares to enhance its investment in the

subsidiary, recognizing a gain of Rs. 4.00 million on the transaction.

Rupees
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35.2

36 (Loss) / EARNINGS  PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

2025 2024

(66,668,954)        29,162,661         

28,266,231         28,266,231         

Basic and diluted (loss) / earning per share RUPEES (2.36)                   1.03                    

36.1 Earnings per share comprises as follows:

Distributable loss  (2.63)  0.91 

Undistributable - unrealised fair value gains 0.27                    0.12                    

 (2.36)  1.03 

36.2

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2025 2024

Associated Companies

Rental income 5,032,851           4,538,712           

Rental received (5,032,851)          (4,538,712)         

Rental income 4,992,588           4,502,109           

Rental received (4,428,908)          (4,568,659)         

Rental income -                      73,205                

Rental received -                      -                     

Rental income 6,978,524           6,344,113           

Rental received (6,978,524)          (6,541,302)         

Rental income 1,200,000           -                     

Rental received -                      -                     

37.1

Kissa Khani (pvt)

Limited

Common 

Directorship

(Loss) / Profit attributable to shareholders of

holding company
RUPEES

The applicable income tax rate for the Tax Year 2024 and beyond is 29% on account of changes

made to Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act 2020. Therefore, deferred tax is

computed at the rate of 29% applicable to the period when temporary differences are expected to be

reversed / utilised. 

Bannu Woollen

Mills Limited

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Holding Company, which is based

on:

Common 

Directorship

Rupees

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

at the end of the year
NUMBERS

Related parties comprise of the holding company, subsidiaries, associated companies, directors

and executives. The Group in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various

related parties. Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under relevant notes. 

Common 

Directorship

Name of the

Related Party

Ghandhara 

Industries Limited

Janana De

Malucho Textile 

Ghandhara 

Automobiles Limited

Common 

Directorship

Under the provisions of Companies Act, 2017 unrealized gain on fair value of investment property is

not distributable as dividend.

Transaction during the 

year 

The status of outstanding balances of related parties as at June 30, 2025 are included in other

receivable (note 14.1) and trade and other payables (note 23).

Common 

Directorship

Relationship 
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2025 2024

NOTE

38 PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Loss) before taxation (45,037,997)        (12,711,700)       

Adjustment for:

Depreciation 6 11,345,987         7,054,680           

Precommencement expenditure 29 364,490              364,490              

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 21.5 142,158              219,415              

37,914,000         -                     

Fair value gain on investment property 7 (7,693,060)          (3,441,280)         

Finance cost 32 12,388                5,453                  

Workers welfare fund -                      60,319                

42,057,962         4,196,951           

(2,980,035)          (8,514,748)         

Loss on sale of operating fixed assets

Gain on sale of fixed assets/store, spares &

loose tools as scrap
(28,000)               31

Rupees

(66,125)              
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39 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

a)

Chief Chief

Executive Executive

-              -              4,973,847   4,973,847   -             -         5,344,972   5,344,972   

-              -              754,775      754,775      -             -         863,004      863,004      

-              -              754,764      754,764      -             -         863,004      863,004      

-              -              754,764      754,764      -             -         863,004      863,004      

-              -              1,509,528   1,509,528   -             -         1,916,736   1,916,736   

Total -              -              8,747,678   8,747,678   -             -         9,850,720   9,850,720   

Number of persons 1 7 3 11 1 7 4 12

b)

c)

No remuneration was paid to the chief executive during the year during the current year and preceding financial years. 

The Chief Executive and certain executives are also provided with cars for business and personal use in accordance with the Holding

Company's car scheme.

Others

The aggregate amount charged in the consolidated financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive,

Directors and Executives of the Holding Company is as follows:

2025 2024

Directors Executives Total Directors Executives Total

Managerial remuneration

House rent

Medical

Utilities

-------------------------- Rupees -------------------------- -------------------------- Rupees --------------------------
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40 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows: 

Maturity Maturity
upto one after one

year year

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Long term security deposits 1,350,600       -            -            -              1,350,600       

Contract receivables 44,457,835     -            -            -              44,457,835     

Other receivables 16,139,017     -            -            -              16,139,017     

Contract asset 65,049,779     -            -            -              65,049,779     

Cash and bank balances 45,731,931     899,948    -            899,948      44,831,983     

172,729,162   899,948    -            899,948      171,829,213   

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Trade and other payables 193,153,061   -            -            -              193,153,061   

Unclaimed dividends 1,442,230       -            -            -              1,442,230       

Deferred liability 4,642,963       -            -            -              4,642,963       

Joint venture partner's advances 30,059,542     -            -            -              30,059,542     

229,297,796   -            -            -              229,297,796   

On balance sheet gap (56,568,634)    899,948    -            899,948      (57,468,583)    

Off Balance sheet Items

Financial contingencies and commitments(136,794,238)  -            -            -              (136,794,238)  

Total Gap (193,362,872)  899,948    -            899,948      (194,262,821)  

Maturity Maturity
upto one after one

year year

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Long term security deposits 3,750,600       -            -            -              3,750,600       

Contract receivables 45,065,957     -            -            -              45,065,957     

Other receivables 4,015,220       -            -            -              4,015,220       

Contract asset 65,049,779     -            -            -              65,049,779     

Cash and bank balances 3,314,907       899,948    -            899,948      2,414,959       

121,196,463   899,948    -            899,948      120,296,515   

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Trade and other payables 203,472,646   -            -            -              203,472,646   

Unclaimed dividends 1,442,230       -            -            -              1,442,230       

Deferred liability 6,402,590       -            -            -              6,402,590       

Joint venture partner's advances 30,059,542     -            -            -              30,059,542     

241,377,008   -            -            -              241,377,008   

On balance sheet gap (120,180,545)  899,948    -            899,948      (121,080,493)  

Off Balance sheet Items

Financial contingencies and commitments(136,794,238)  -            -            -              (136,794,238)  

Total Gap (256,974,783)  899,948    -            899,948      (257,874,731)  

40.1 Effective interest rates are mentioned in the respective notes to the financial statements.

2025

2024

Total

Interest/mark up bearing Not interest / 

mark up 

bearing
Sub-total

Rupees

Total

Interest/mark up bearing Not interest / 

mark up 

bearing
Sub-total

Rupees
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

41.1 Risk management policies

41.2 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

2025 2024

NOTE

Long term security deposits 9 1,350,600         3,750,600      

Contract receivables 11 44,457,835       45,065,957    

Loans and advances 13 19,103,298       18,145,255    

Other receivables 14 16,139,017       4,015,220      

Contract asset 12 65,049,779       65,049,779    

Bank balances 17 43,547,597       2,703,182      

189,648,126     138,729,993  

The aging of contract receivables at the reporting date is:

-                    -                 

Past due 1-30 days -                    -                 

Past due 30-90 days -                    -                 

Past due 90 days 44,457,835       45,065,957    

44,457,835       45,065,957    

Concentration of credit risk

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit

reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other factors.

Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business

activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual

obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The

Group's management believes that it is not exposed to any major concentration of credit risk. 

Rupees

All the Group's trade contract receivables at balance sheet date represent domestic parties.

The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with major bank and monitoring exposure limits on

continuous basis.

The Group’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holders’ value. Risk

is inherent in the Group’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification,

measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk

management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability. The Group is exposed to credit risk,

liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising from the financial

instruments it holds.

The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital

with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter

parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other receivables. The

Group’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance with

the internal guidelines and regulator requirements.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures before any

credit enhancements. Out of total financial assets, the financial assets which are subject to credit

risk amounted to Rs. 189,648,126/- (2024: Rs. 138,729,993). The carrying amounts of Group's

financial assets exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as under:

Not past due
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41.3 Liquidity risk

Trade and Other Payable 193,153,061     193,153,061   193,153,061    -             -                -                -                

Unclaimed Dividend 1,442,230         1,442,230       -                   -             1,442,230     -                -                

Deferred Liability  4,642,963         -                  -                   -             -                4,642,963     -                

229,297,796     224,654,833   223,212,603    -             1,442,230     4,642,963     -                

Trade and Other Payable 203,472,646     203,472,646   203,472,646    -             -                -                -                

Unclaimed Dividend 1,442,230         1,442,230       -                   -             1,442,230     -                -                

Deferred Liability  6,402,590         -                  -                   -             -                6,402,590     -                

241,377,008     234,974,418   233,532,188    -             1,442,230     6,402,590     -                

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal

and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The followings are the contractual

maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments if any and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

2025

Carrying 

Amount

Contractual 

Cash Flow

Six Month or 

Less

Six to 

Twelve 

Month 

One to Two 

Year 

Two to Five 

Year 

Over Five 

Year 

Joint Venture partner's 

advance 

Over Five Year 

Rupees

Two to Five 

Year 

30,059,542       

Carrying 

Amount

Contractual 

Cash Flow

Six Month or 

Less

Six to 

Twelve 

Month 

-                

One to Two 

Year 

-                -                30,059,542     30,059,542      -             

Rupees

Joint Venture partner's 

advance 

2024

30,059,542       30,059,542     30,059,542      -             -                -                -                
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41.4 Market risk

a) Currency risk

b) Interest rate risk 

c) Other price risk

42 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost 

Contract receivables 44,457,835     44,457,835     45,065,957     45,065,957     

Contract asset 65,049,779     65,049,779     65,049,779     65,049,779     

Loans and advances 19,103,298     19,103,298     18,145,255     18,145,255     

Other receivables 16,139,017     16,139,017     4,015,220       4,015,220       

Cash and bank balances 45,731,931     45,731,931     3,314,907       3,314,907       

190,481,860   190,481,860   135,591,118   135,591,118   

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arise in financial

instruments that are denominated in foreign currencies i.e. in a currency other then the functional

currency in which they are measured.

Presently the Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk except contingencies as disclosed in

note 26.2 to these consolidated financial statements.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises

from long term loans and short borrowings. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any

significant interest rate risk. 

The Group is not exposed to any material interest rate risk, therefore, no sensitivity analysis has

been presented.

Carrying 

Amount 
Fair value 

Carrying 

Amount 
Fair Value 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates

and equity prices will effect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

At the year end the Group is not exposed to price risk since there are no financial instruments

whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between

knowledgeable willing parties in arms length transactions.

The financial instruments that are not traded in active market are carried at cost and are tested for

impairment according to IFRS 9. The carrying amount of trade receivables and payables are

assumed to approximate their fair values.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency

risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or

its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements

approximate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each

reporting date.

Rupees 

The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future

contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar

financial instruments, if relevant.

June 30,2025 June 30,2024
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Liabilities Carried at Amortized Cost 

193,153,061   193,153,061   203,472,646   203,472,646   

1,442,230       1,442,230       1,442,230       1,442,230       

30,059,542     30,059,542     30,059,542     30,059,542     

224,654,833   224,654,833   234,974,418   234,974,418   

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Investment Property Carried at Fair Value -                 365,339,500   365,339,500   

Freehold Land and Building -                  -                 275,852,163   275,852,163   

-                  -                 641,191,663   641,191,663   

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Investment Property Carried at Fair Value -                 357,646,440   357,646,440   

Freehold Land and Building -                  -                 426,382,952   426,382,952   

-                  -                  784,029,392  784,029,392 

2025 2024

NOTE

Reconciliation of net increase in level 3 fair values:

    784,029,392    779,262,396 

      35,449,494                     -   

  (192,914,000)
                    -   

         (590,448)          (422,540)

        7,693,060        3,441,280 

        7,524,165        1,748,257 

    641,191,663    784,029,392 

Interest rate used for determining fair value 

Additions during the year

Disposal / Transfer to subsidiary 

as consideration

Depreciation charged during the year

As at June 30,2025

Total

Rupees 

As at June 30,2024

Rupees

The investment property and freehold land and building in operating fixed assets were valued on

June 30, 2025 carried out by external independent valuer M/s Impulse (Private) Limited. 

Unclaimed Dividend

Joint Venture partner's 

advance 

As at June 30, 2025 the Company did not hold any financial instruments carried at fair value.

Moreover, investment property and operating fixed assets are measured at fair value.

Rupees 

Rupees 

June 30,2025 June 30,2024

Carrying 

Amount 
Fair value 

Carrying 

Amount 
Fair Value 

Total

Trade and Other Payable 

Fair value at beginning of the year

Fair value at end of the year

The Holding Company has revalued its freehold land, buildings on June 30, 2025 and plant and

machinery on June 30, 2019 by independent valuer M/s Impulse (Private) Limited on the basis of

market values of similar properties. The fair value of free hold land, buildings and plant and

machinery is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement.

Remeasurement recognized in profit or loss

Remeasurement recognized in OCI

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the

government yield curve at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread. For instruments

carried at amortized cost, since majority of the interest bearing instruments are variable rate

based instruments, there is no difference in carrying amount and the fair value. Further, for fixed

rate instruments, since there is no significant difference in market rate and the rate of instrument

and therefore most of the fixed rate instruments are of short term in nature, fair value significantly

approximates to carrying value.
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42.1

43 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR ALL SHARE ISLAMIC INDEX

44 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

2025 2024

NOTE

    845,802,900    905,246,583 

Gearing ratio                      -                       -   

The fair value of non-derivate financial asset is estimated as the present value of future cash

flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value is determined

for disclosure purposes.

Non-derivate financial liabilities

Determination of fair values

A number of the Group's accounting polices and disclosures require the determination of fair

value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined

of measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

Non-derivate financial asset

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting

period during which the change the occurred. However, there is no transfers between levels during

the year.

Fair value hierarchy

With reference to circular no. 14 of 2016 dated April 21, 2016, issued by the Securities and

Exchange Commission of Pakistan relating to "All Shares Islamic Index", the Company does not

have investment, bank balance or other operations having Islamic mode therefore, individual items

required by circular no. 14 of 2016 have not been disclosed.

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value

of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting

date.

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and

market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors

monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net profit after taxation divided by total

shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary

shareholders. There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the

year and the Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Rupees

Equity

The capital structure of the Group is as follows:

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the

Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the

significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The table below shows analysis of

financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different values have been

defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted)  in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

Level 2: input other than quoted prices included with in Level 1 that are observable for assets and

liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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45 JOINT VENTURES

45.1

45.2

Rs. in million Investor

Khalifa Gul Nawaz Medical Complex, Bannu 402.36 50%

Durrani Public School, Bannu - Phase II 295 50%

Hawad / Nurar Bridges, Bannu 176.42 50%

46 INFORMATION ABOUT BUSINESS SEGMENTS

47 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2025 2024

As at June 30 20 19

Average during the year 19 19

48 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

48.1 MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOING CONCERN

Numbers

The Joint Venture for execution of Bong Canal Bridge, Mangla with Sarwar Construction (Private)

Limited was in the ratio of 60:40 and the Company recognized its own share i.e. 60% of income

and expenses in the preceding years' financial statements.

As approved by the Board of Directors, the management had entered into Joint Venture

arrangements for the execution of the following Projects in prior years:

Further the Group has earned an operational (loss) during the current year amounting to Rs

(52.718 million).Further it has managed to meet the day to day working capital requirements and to

repay all the administrative cost through the rental income earned from investment properties.

However, the management is confident of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern based

on its concentrated effort to re-profile the operational activities and utilization of improved liquidity

in cost efficient operational levels of machinery and related projects. The Group undertook

following significant operational measures in order to generate liquidity and profitable

projects/ventures:

Profit sharing 

ratio

Project 

value

The Group's operations are confined to Pakistan in terms of customers; accordingly, the figures

reported in these financial statements relate to the Group's business segments relating to

Pakistan.

For management purposes, the activities of the Group have been divided into own projects and

joint ventures. The Group operates in these business segments based on risk and return,

organizational and management structure and internal financial reporting systems. Operating

results of joint ventures have not been separately disclosed in these financial statements as these

do not meet the minimum thresholds prescribed by IFRS 8 (Operating Segments).
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48.2 INVESTIGATION AGAINST EX-CFO

49 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

49.1 GENERAL

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                                  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER                         DIRECTOR

The corresponding figures have been rearranged, regrouped and reclassified for the purposes of

comparison and better presentation, wherever necessary. However, no significant reclassification

or rearrangement has been made.

• New Chief Operating officer, Project Director and Chief Financial Officer hired in place of

ineffective predecessors in the preceding financial year;

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on ____28 Oct 2025____ by

the Board of Directors of the Company.

Amounts printed in the consolidated financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest of

rupee, unless otherwise stated.

• On 01 September 2020 the Company entered into a joint venture agreement for 15 years with

Rajcon- a construction and engineering company having expertise in pre-fabricated buildings and

construction for future projects. The Owner of Rajcon also appointed as Chief Operating Officer of

the company to develop, acquire and manage the future projects for the company.

Based on in-house internal audit report the EX-CFO of the company during the period from 01

January 2018 to 29 December 2020 was involved in certain financial transactions amounting to Rs

26.804 million, which is being investigated internally. Moreover, FIR has been lodged against him

subsequent to June 30, 2021. The transactions are mainly done out of books and the impact of

such investigation/FIR, if any, will be accounted for in the period during which such case is

completed.

• The company is going to develop their own housing and commercial projects for which necessary

approvals are in process. 
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GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT 

UNDER CIRCULAR NO. 10 OF 2024 OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF 

PAKISTAN 

Name of company: Gammon Pakistan Limited  

Year ended: June 30, 2025 

Following is the gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30 June, 2024: 

i. Mean Gender pay gap: 100% 

ii. Median Gender pay gap: 100% 

iii. The Company offers its employees equitable compensation based on their 

individual profile and performance without any discrimination with respect to 

their gender. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

 

 

Chief Executive Officer          Director 
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Net Contract

profit /(loss)

Cash and Cash

Equivalents at year end

(706.759)

PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT

Contract income 184.639 75.716 24.331 6.677 NIL NIL

11.124 (23.21) (1.91) (10.126) (0.92)

BALANCE SHEET

Shareholders’ equity 785.77 792.354 793.869 804.356 847.749 785.149

251.908 313.948

Operating Fixed Assets 288.573 293.153 299.085 300.176 264.259

Current Assets 356.703 292.19 267.7 253.59

SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING DATA

            (Amounts are in Million PKR)

197.468

1.204 5.543 1.206 2.12 3.101 1.946

Current Liabilities 269.16 225.018 212.595 195.367 212.753

126.881
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